

# INFLUENCE OF JAPANESE EDO PERIOD ART (UKIYO-E) ON MODERN ANIME, MANGA, AND VIDEO GAMES

By Andrew Gilwhalley

# **A DISSERTATION**

Presented to the Department of Art History program at Selinus University

Faculty of Art and Humanities in fulfilment of the requirements for the degree of Doctor of Philosophy by Research

2023

# **Table of Contents**

Chapter	1: Introduction	. 5
1.1.	Background to the Research	5
1.2.	Research Questions	8
1.3.	Aim and Objectives	9
1.4.	Theories and Models Used	11
1.5.	Contribution to Knowledge	12
1.6.	Chapter breakdown and summary	14
Chapter	2: Literature Review	16
2.1.	Introduction of the Japanese Edo period art and Ukiyo-e	16
2.2.	History of anime, manga, and video games in Japan	22
2.3.	Overview of Japanese Edo Period Art and Ukiyo-e	26
2.4.	Evolution of Anime, Manga, and Video Games in Japan	29
2.5.	Previous Studies on the Influence of Ukiyo-e on Modern Visual Media	31
2.6.	Research Gap & Conceptual Framework	33
2.7.	Summary	37
Chapter	3: Methodology	39
3.1.	Introduction	39
3.2.	Research Philosophy	39

3.3.	Research Strategy41
3.4.	Research Design45
3.5.	Research Administration
3.6.	Research Ethic
3.7.	Methodology Restriction
3.8.	Chapter Conclusion
Chapte	r 4: Findings59
4.1.	Introduction
4.2.	Analysis of Ukiyo-e Characteristics and their Influence on Anime, Manga, and
	Video Games60
4.3.	Case Studies of Specific Examples of Ukiyo-e-Inspired Artwork in Modern Visua
	Media64
4.4.	Comparison of Ukiyo-e and Modern Visual Media in Style, Composition, and
	Color Usage. 69
4.5.	Challenges and Limitations
4.6.	Interpretation of Findings
4.7.	Conclusion
Chapte	r 5: Discussion
5.1.	Interpretation of The Findings

5.2.	Implications O	f The Study	For	Understanding	The	Relationship	Between
	Traditional And	Modern Japaı	nese Ai	rt	•••••		81
Chapte	er 6: Conclusion.		•••••				94
6.1.	Key findings		•••••		•••••		94
6.2.	Contributions t	o knowledge	and un	derstanding in th	ne field	d	99
6.3.	Recommendati	ons for furthe	r resea	rch			101
List of	References						106

#### **Chapter 1: Introduction**

### 1.1. Background to the Research

Ukiyo-e, a form of art that originated in Japan during the Edo period, experienced a golden age from the 17th to the 19th century and significantly influenced the global art scene. Ukiyo-e, which translates to "pictures of the floating world," was a type of woodblock print representing various subjects. These prints captured urban life's lively and ephemeral features during that era. According to Pérez-Arantegui et al. (2018), the prints featured various topics, such as historical events, attractive women, kabuki theatre, landscapes, and folk stories. Accessibility to many people was one of the defining aspects of Ukiyo-e, Japanese woodblock printing. The intricate designs were carved into wooden blocks using a printing method known as woodblock printing, which required applying ink to transfer the image from the block onto paper. The prints were manufactured in large quantities. This enabled the manufacturing of several copies, which, in comparison to other forms of art at the period, made ukiyo-e prints more accessible to a wider audience and made them more affordable (Biron, Carole, et al., 2020). As a direct outcome, Ukiyo-e advanced right into a properly-favored art style that mirrored the choices and interests of Edo's expanding middle elegance (the equal of Tokyo these days).

Prints of the Ukiyo-e style have been regarded for their brilliant hues, strong strains, and complicated information, which gave them an exceptional appearance. According to Biron et al. (2018), artists used several techniques to create their prints, one of which turned into multi-block printing, allowing them to generate many colours and shading results. Whether it turned into a panorama, a portrait, or a scene from the theatre or normal life, the concern regularly became the point of interest in the composition of the prints. According to Gargano et al. (2022), the artists validated a mastery of the talent of shooting fleeting moments, generating feelings, and conveying

storylines interior a single photograph. Katsushika Hokusai, who is known for his traditional print series "Thirty-Six Views of Mount Fuji" and his masterpiece "The Great Wave off Kanagawa," which has come to be an across the world diagnosed logo of Japanese art, is one of the tremendous Ukiyo-e artists. Another artist who had a significant impact was Utagawa Hiroshige, best known for his series titled "The Fifty-Three Stations of the Tkaid," which depicts the well-known Tkaid road.

Ukiyo-e heavily influenced current Japanese popular culture, especially anime, manga, and video games. Ukiyo-e, with its own visual style and thematic richness, has inspired contemporary painters, animators, and game developers, moulding their aesthetics and storytelling strategies (Sakura, 2021). Visually, ukiyo-e-e shaped modern Japanese popular culture. Ukiyo-e prints have powerful fibres, bright colors, and striking details (Kimura & Harris, 2020). Ukiyo-e's rich colors and attention to detail influenced the video game environment (Shi & Zhou, 2023). This visual communication helps the audience connect with the culture and crates a visual language.

The impact of artworks from Japan's Edo period, known as Ukiyo-e, on current anime, manga, and video games is a matter of considerable cultural and historical pertinence. Ukiyo-e gained great fame during Japan's Edo era (1603-1867), and its motifs and fashion have persisted to touch Japanese art and culture (Kwon, 2022). Ukiyo-e, a Japanese expression meaning "pictures of the ephemeral world," depicted the ordinary lives of ordinary folks, sceneries, and celebrated thespians and courtesans. The style of Ukiyo-e, with its unambiguous lines and inimitable colors, appealed extensively to people as it offered simplicity while still evoking awe. In the concluding years of the 19th century, Japan commenced to allow overseas nations access to its land (Rusiňáková, 2019). Ukiyo-e subsequently grew in notoriety due to its presentation to a larger group of spectators. Visionaries such as Vincent van Gogh and Claude Monet found themselves

extremely stirred by the striking lines and brilliant shades of Ukiyo-e. Traceable inspirations from Ukiyo-e can effortlessly be spotted in the art of these innovators.

In the twentieth century, Ukiyo-e had an enduring impact on Japanese art and culture, specifically anime, manga, and video gaming. Its highlight features and bold strokes are replicated in these media, resulting in a highly identifiable visual approach (Avendaño-Garro, 2021). The vitality of this thesis's topic becomes even more evident when we appreciate the interconnectedness of multiple art forms and media of Japan. Critical examination of the influence of Ukiyo-e on today's anime, manga, and video games can provide insights into the evolution of Japanese culture throughout history. Moreover, this subject has vital consequences for the investigation of worldwide popular culture. Comics, cartoons, and video games hailing from Japan are multitues of people and different industries such as art, entertainment, media fashion and design globally, and this fame is only increasing (Becke, 2022). Noting the underlying historical and societal foundations of these mediums can aid us in comprehending their gravity as cultural artifacts and participating with them further profoundly.

Consequently, researching Ukiyo-e and its effect on modern Japanese media casts light on the transmission of art and culture through time and space. Examining how Ukiyo-e has been tailored and altered over the years can give us an improved grasp of the ever-changing link between tried-and-tested ways and fresh ideas within the arts. Finally, this topic is relevant to those crafting works of anime, manga, and video games. By pinpointing the visual fundamentals of Ukiyo-e that have been most influential in these types of media, creators can draw ideas for their individual projects and come up with imaginative designs that develop upon this significant creative heritage. In the end, the sway of Ukiyo-e on modern anime, manga, and video games oft lies in its capacity

to amplify our insight into Japanese art and civilization, to furnish discernment into the traveling of art across time and expanse, and to invigorate new kinds of creative manifestation.

Ukiyo-e also influenced the way Japanese popular culture talks about it. Ukiyo-e depicted ordinary life, history, and folklore in on frame (Duran & Murgia, 2021). In anima, manga, and video games, a single image tells a story or tells motion. Ukiyo-e prints often inspire artists and designers (Yi, 2023). Katsushika Hokusai's "The Great Wave of Kanagawa" has Great reinterpreted and referenced in numerous animas, manga, and video games, becoming an icon of Japanese pop culture (Art in Context, 2022) Ukiyo-e prints by their famous characters, styled They inspire producers and audiences with landscapes and historical figures. One must study the ukiyo-e's historical and cultural context to appreciate the impact of ukiyo-e-e on contemporary entertainment, as well as its artistic techniques and themes. This study examines the relationship between Ukiyo-e and contemporary anima, manga, and video games.

#### 1.2. Research Questions

In attempting to understand the topic of the thesis, the researcher will adopts several questions that the research will address in the course of the literature review, and discussion chapters of the thesis.

- 1. How has the visual style of Ukiyo-e influenced the art and design of modern anima, manga, and video games?
- 2. What specific laments of Ukiyo-e are most commonly used in modern Japanese media, and how have they evolved or changed over time?

- 3. How has the popularity of Ukiyo-e in Japan affected the reception of modern anima, manga, and video games both domestically and internationally?
- 4. What cultural and historical factors have contributed to the enduring influence of Ukiyo-e on Japanese art and popular culture?
- 5. How have creators of modern anima, manga, and video games adapted and incorporated Ukiyo-e into their work, and what impact has this had on the medium as a whole?
- 6. What role has Ukiyo-e played in shaping the identity of Japanese media, and how has it influenced the global perception of Japanese popular culture?

#### 1.3. Aim and Objectives

- To analyse the historical and cultural setting of Japanese Edo period Art and the significance it has in Japanese art and culture.
- 2. To identify and explore the visual elements of Ukiyo-e that have been largely incorporated into modern anime, manga, and video games.
- To examine the several methods in which Ukiyo-e has directly or indirectly affected the
  development of modern Japanese media and informed the current distinct visual style
  that can be observed.
- 4. To investigate how Ukiyo-e-inspired Art in form of anima, manga, and video games have been received on both Japanese art industry and international stage.
- 5. To evaluate the impact that Ukiyo-e has had on the global perception of Japanese popular culture.

6. To offer a holistic overview of the role that Ukiyo-e has played in deciding the fate of modern Japanese media and its culture.

Examining the Edo duration's social, cultural, and aesthetic environment can assist this objective lay a sturdy basis. The purpose is to offer a historic context for comprehending the delivery of Ukiyo-e and its hyperlink to the larger cultural surroundings of the length by using drawing on scholarly assets like Richard Lane's examination of Ukiyo-e prints and Tsuji Nobuo's paintings on Japanese art records (Wise, 2019). The visual elements of Ukiyo-e, which includes compositional strategies, use of shade, line work, and attitude, may be better understood via consulting assets like the ones by Michiyo Morioka on anime and manga research and Gian Carlo Calza on Japanese artwork (Agung et al., 2021). The aim is to determine the aesthetic additives that have encouraged cutting-edge Japanese famous traditions by examining these precise, inventive styles. The impact of Ukiyo-e extends past the aesthetics of the artwork shape and includes the strategies of storytelling and the thematic components. This research sheds insight into how classical narrative traditions have been altered and reinterpreted in current Japanese popular culture (Bawiec, 2018). This is accomplished by examining the aforementioned features of the phenomenon. This investigation paves the way for a more in-depth comprehension of the consistency as well as the evolution of storytelling methods over the course of time.

Studying how Ukiyo-e has impacted modern entertainment can also shed light on the ways in which Japanese visual culture has had an international impact. Anime, manga, and video games have all achieved great levels of success on a global scale, becoming important components of Japan's cultural exports. Our understanding of the historical and cultural origins of various types of entertainment increases our enjoyment and analysis of their widespread popularity.

#### 1.4. Theories and Models Used

The purpose of this study is to investigate the impact that ukiyo-e has had on contemporary forms of entertainment using various conceptual and theoretical frameworks. Examining the social and cultural repercussions of Ukiyo-e's influence will require theoretical frameworks such as cultural studies, media studies, and art history (Yi, 2023). These will provide the muse for the have a look at. Authors who have made enormous contributions to those topics, together with Roland Barthes, Stuart Hall, and John Fiske, can be noted in the path of analysing the cultural relevance of ukiyo-e and the numerous approaches it has adopted. In addition, this observation will use semiotics and visual evaluation as theoretical frameworks to analyze the formal additives and visible language shared by Ukiyo-e and modern media, along with anime, manga, and video games. These modern varieties of media include video games. The subject of semiotics, which became hooked up by way of Ferdinand de Saussure and later advanced by Roland Barthes, is a beneficial tool for studying the symbolic and communicative additives of visible aesthetics.

The study of signals and their meanings is the subject of the academic discipline referred to as semiotics. According to Yi (2023), signs and symptoms are "any detail that conveys meaning," along with visual photos, terms, and gestures. In the context of Ukiyo-e and modern-day media, semiotics allows us to delve into the visual signs and logos utilised in both art paperwork, investigating their meaning and their cultural implications. Ukiyo-e prints are regarded for their abundancy of metaphors and symbolism, which have considerable meanings in Japanese society. The works of Saussure and Barth's offer a framework to investigate how those symbols function within the visual language of Ukiyo-e. According to Sakura (2021), the idea of the signifier and the signified emphasises the connection the fabric shape of a sign and the idea or importance that the sign embodies. By applying this framework to Ukiyo-e, we can investigate the methods in

which the visual aspects, like colour, composition, unique motifs, explicit sure mind, emotions, or cultural allusions. In addition, analysing the visual aesthetics of ukiyo-e can gain significantly from applying Barthes' idea of connotation and denotation. The literal, surface-stage meaning of an image is called denotation. In contrast, the cultural and contextual associations and interpretations built on the denotative level are called the connotation. The research will seek to decipher the deeper cultural and symbolic implications within the images by focusing on the connotative meanings of specific visual aspects in Ukiyo-e prints, such as depicting particular objects, situations, or characters.

#### 1.5. Contribution to Knowledge

This research advances theoretical and practical understanding of the relationship between ancient art forms like Ukiyo-e and modern popular cultures like anime, manga, and video games. The following explanation expands on theoretical and practical knowledge contributions. Theoretical Contribution: Artistic and Narrative Traditions' Continuity and Change: This research increases our understanding of the continuity and transformation of artistic and narrative traditions over time by analyzing Ukiyo-e's distinctive artistic skills, visual aesthetics and storytelling strategies and their application in contemporary media. It shows how contemporary culture reimagines, repurposes, and recontextualizes classic art forms (Sakura, 2021). Bridging Historical and Contemporary Cultural Production: The research links Ukiyo-e's historical framework to anime, manga, and video games. It builds a continuum contextualising and placing contemporary media within a large cultural and artistic tradition by analyzing Ukiyo-e's influence on modern entertainment. In terms of practical contributions, the art has been used as resource for artists, Animators, and Game Developers: This research inspires artists, animators, and game developers.

Creators can learn about visual methods, composition, and narrative tactics by studying specific Ukiyo-e works. This research provides current artists with inspiration and creative opportunities.

Culturally Informed and Nuanced Representations in Contemporary Media: Understanding Ukiyo-e's cultural context and significance helps creators create more culturally informed and nuanced media. Artists can create real media by drawing from Ukiyo-e's rich visual language and symbolic aspects. Enriching Japanese Popular Culture Studies: This study examines Ukiyo-e's impact on modern entertainment, enriching the area. It provides new ideas, linkages, and views on Japan's traditional and current cultural creations (Sakura, 2021). Scholars and researchers interested in the interaction of traditional and modern art forms will find this research useful.

To investigate Ukiyo-e's impact on modern anime, manga, and video games, the aforementioned research will use a mix of qualitative and contextual analysis approaches (Liagkou et al., 2022). Interpretivism, which emphasises understanding social phenomena by one's own subjective interpretations and the cultural settings in which they occur, will serve as the guiding philosophy for this investigation. Through the use of an interpretive methodology, the purpose of this study is to unearth the hidden meanings and cultural connotations contained within Ukiyo-e as well as the influence that it has had on contemporary forms of entertainment (Scrolavezza et al., 2023). A case study technique will be utilized for the research that will be conducted, with the primary emphasis being placed on particular instances of Ukiyo-e prints and the specific anime, manga, and video games that have been influenced by those prints (Sakura, 2021). This tactic makes it possible to conduct an in-depth analysis of visual and narrative elements, which results in full comprehension of the direct connections between Ukiyo-e and modern forms of media. This research intends to uncover patterns, motifs, and thematic components adopted and adapted from

Ukiyo-e by investigating individual case studies. These case studies will focus on specific examples of Ukiyo-e.

Combining qualitative content analysis with semiotic analysis will be one of the approaches taken in this research project's methodology. The analysis of primary sources, including Ukiyo-e prints, anime episodes, manga panels, and video game visuals, will use qualitative content analysis. (Liagkou et al., 2022) This analysis aims to identify visual components, compositional approaches, and narrative themes present in both Ukiyo-e and current media. Using theoretical frameworks developed by Saussure and Barthes, the semiotic study will delve deeper into these visual features' symbolic meanings and cultural implications. The research will consider ethics. This research will cite and acknowledge sources ethically. Any use of copyrighted content, such as Ukiyo-e prints or extracts from anime, manga, or video games, shall conform with fair use laws and obtain permission where necessary. Primary sources and case study selection biases may limit methodology. The selection of examples may limit generalizability. Case studies will be selected from various periods, genres, and mediums to overcome these limitations.

#### 1.6. Chapter breakdown and summary

This thesis is arranged in six chapters; the introduction chapter herein and five other chapters. The literature review chapter shall canvass three key concepts that have been discussed by other authors and studies including an overview of Japanese Edo period art and Ukiyo, the history of anime, manga, and video games in Japan and previous studies on the influence of Ukiyoe on modern visual media. The third chapter will be the methodology that will delve into the research design and approach, the data collection methods and the data analysis techniques. The findings chapter will be an analysis of Ukiyo-e characteristics and their influence on anime, manga,

and video games, the case studies of specific examples of Ukiyo-e-inspired artwork in modern visual media, and the comparison of Ukiyo-e and modern visual media in terms of style, composition, and color usage. The discussion chapter will interpret the findings, analyse the study's implications for understanding the relationship between traditional and modern Japanese art and assess the study's limitations and suggestions for future research. Finally, the conclusion chapter will summarize the main findings, discuss the contributions to knowledge and understanding in the field, and recommend further research.

Chapter one of this thesis has laid down the background of Ukiyo-e, a Japanese art form from the Edo period. Ukiyo-e prints' ideas, visuals, and accessibility influenced Japanese popular culture, particularly anime, manga, and video games. Ukiyo-e's direct impact on current media was the research question, aim, and objectives. The research justified examining Ukiyo-e's influence on modern entertainment, the theories and models to be used, and the knowledge gained. The methodology includes interpretative, case study, qualitative content, and semiotic analysis. Ethics and methodological constraints were considered.

#### **Chapter 2: Literature Review**

## 2.1. Introduction of the Japanese Edo period art and Ukiyo-e

Undoubtedly, the Edo period or the Tokugawa period is one of the brightest times in the history of Japan, especially in terms of art and culture. The art existed long before this period, but "Japanese ukiyo-e printing technique reached its zenith during the late Edo-period" (Moilanen, 2021). Ukiyo-e woodblock prints are the major makers of this great period; however, due to the lack of successors who would continue this art development, the ukiyo-e art trend is dying out. To continue the woodblock printing this way, it is important to use a special wild cherry tree called yamazakura. In an attempt to preserve the ukiyo-e tradition of woodblock printing, the Finns tried to find an alternative to the wood material the Japanese used: heating alder and birch. However, it should be noted that the ukiyo-e art is viewed in three genres:

- 1. Original paintings on silk or on paper (nikushitsu);
- 2. The wood block printed books (hanbon);
- 3. The wood block printed pictures (mokuhanga) (Moilanen, 2021).

Therefore, in order to better understand the techniques and meanings of this period, it is worth analyzing each genre separately as well as within the context of the past and present time periods.

Hayakawa (2021) explores a wide range of pictures that represented spring images or so-called shunga from the Tokugawa period, which is one of the most crucial and most prominent pages of Japanese history. Even though the city of Edo is considered to be the center of art flourishing, these particular works of art can be found in many cities of the country, including Osaka and Kyoto. When Japan became a more open state in the middle of the 19<sup>th</sup>

century, many shunga pictures were transported or sold to other countries in America and Europe. Since then, that particular type of Japanese woodblock print art has been known as ukiyo-e. The author claims that the artworks are considered to be the basis of erotic images. What is more striking is the fact that with the appearance of shunga, the inscriptions under the drawings of people almost disappeared, while shunga images were even found on some of the military garments of Japanese samurai (Hayakawa, 2021). Thus, the author gives a brief overview of the appearance of shunga and ukiyo-e in the Tokugawa Period and the presence of 'spring pictures' even in the military sphere of Japan, which is an important aspect in this art development on the whole.

Comprehension of visual artistic information of a particular period like that of the Edo period requires a systematic analysis of a great number of artworks. The analysis and comparison of forms and styles of different artworks can give a better understanding of the whole period as well as the techniques used by the artists. There has been created a database with about 175.000 prints with all the required information, for instance, date, style, artist, era, etc. (Khan and van Noord, 2021). Such a database with all the corresponding information about ukiyo-e woodblock prints presents a valuable collection to be used for comparison and analysis of many artworks and for drawing conclusions about the main features and representation of the style in general.

There have been presented results of the usage of a non-invasive approach and the analysis of specific Japanese woodblock prints. In the course of special computer programming analysis, six Japanese woodblock prints were examined. The whole investigation presented in the article was devoted to pinpointing the special printing techniques. The findings revealed that the investigation presents totally new information in

regard to the usage of texture visualizations in Ukiyo-e printing. In the process of the investigation, it was found that the Japanese used special colorants to achieve special shades and colors in their prints (Gargano et al., 2022). Most notably, the information retrieved is totally new, and this methodology can be used to analyze other ukiyo-e prints or artworks from the Tokugawa Period or others.

Yet, another perspective on color usage in ukiyo-e art is presented in the article by Biron et al. (2019). The findings of the study are considered to be complementary, while the results have been confirmed by "near- and mid-infrared and fluorescence analyses" (Biron et al, 2019). Except for the types of coloring and colorants, the researchers were able to finalize and offer a general chronology for colorant usage in ukiyo-e prints. Thus, the Japanese artists of that period tended to use both organic and non-organic pigments for coloring; however, later synthetic colorants appeared in woodblock printing, but they did not replace traditional ones entirely.

Also, some authors pay close attention to the artworks of single artists of the Edo Period. For example, some light is shed on the style of such Japanese artists as Kobayashi Kiyochika (1847-1912) whose works resemble both the ukiyo-e style and modern trend (Breedlove and Tucker, 2018). Being born at the end of the famous period, Kobayashi managed to resist the influence of modern techniques, showing ukiyo-e style or pictures of "floating words". Nonetheless, many scholars consider Kiyochika to be resemblance of late Edo period art as well as the proponent of modern Japanese art (Breedlove and Tucker, 2018). In particular, the article discusses Kiyochika's painting called "Mosquito Net and Full Moon at Shinagawa", from the series One Hundred Views of Musashi. It is crucial to analyze works of art by such artists as Kiyochika because he is the representative of the generation which

underwent the transition from the Edo Period art to the modern art period. Such artworks can show the direct influence of the former on the latter.

Furthermore, some scientists try to represent artworks of the Edo period using modern technology. For instance, some authors make an attempt to render ukiyo-e style artworks using computation, in particular 3-D images. Thus, presenting Japanese prints of the Edo period makes them look much more realistic as they are visualized through 3-D computer graphics. The offered algorithms help to render the lines, shapes, and colors of the ukiyo-e prints with the help of 3-D models (Brown and Ognjen, 2020). Thus, the artworks of the Japanese past period, such as the Edo, can be perpetuated with the help of computer technology.

However, some scholars present the images of ukiyo-e style prints through the prism of socio-cultural aspects. As mentioned above, the images of this period present a 'floating world', attempting to showcase the real life of the Japanese. The main personages of the ukiyo-e woodblock prints are the people of the working class "courtesans, geishas, and Kabuki actors" (Ellis, 2019). Nevertheless, as it is stated in the essay, there always was a conflict between these people and the ruling class or Tokugawa shogunate. Finally, the author tries to dissent the differences between the ukiyo-e style and Western traditions, which is important to understand in order to see their influences on the modern trends in the art sphere.

Meticulous attention should be given to the representation of men and women in ukiyo-e woodblock prints. Apart from the natural images of landscapes, images of people of both sexes should have a fair share of analysis as they represent the peculiarities of the Edo period in their own way. Obout130 most famous Japanese prints can give a vast understanding of such aspects of Japan as culture, folklore, history, traditions, fashion, and mythology. The images of men and women present the pastime activities of Japan during Tokugawa rule. The prints presented were

created by such Edo artists as Kitagawa Utamaro, Toshusai Sharaku, Utagawa Toyokuni, and Utagawa Kunimasa (Dwinger et al., 2023). It is an invaluable contribution to the available multiple sources dealing with the artworks of the Edo period; it can serve as a foundation for the analysis of men's and women's representations in Japanese culture.

Understanding spirits and mythology of the Japanese can also be grasped from the analysis and comparison of some of the female images of the Edo period. One of the folkloric representatives of this period is a female ghost whose name is Oiwa. The woman was believed to be murdered by her husband, so later her ghost haunted the man everywhere, which is reflected in many ukiyo-e paintings by different artists of that period. However, Oiwa is not the only female ghost of that time, there were many female spirits who are generally known as 'yurei' (Gotthardt, 2019). The Japanese culture is well-known for its various beliefs and festivals devoted to dead people, so such a representation of female ghosts in the art of this country is not surprising. Thus, the most famous paintings of ukiyo-e period are created by such artists, as Utagawa Kuniyoshi, Shunbaisai Hokuei, Shunkosai Hokushu, Tsukioka Yoshitoshi, and some others (Gotthardt, 2019). Such paintings were often sold in the theatres to the audience who came to watch a play.

The art of the Edo period has always been very influential and even today we can trace the traits of ukiyo-e culture in modern artworks. Thus, many European artists have been influenced and inspired by the Japanese art of that period. According to Shi and Zhou (2023), traces of the ukiyo-e traditions and peculiarities can be seen in many works of art by Western European painters, both impressionists and post-impressionists. The most influential artists and representatives of ukiyo-e are Hiroshige Kakawa and Katsushika Hokusai. So, in many European paintings, one can trace the shapes, usage of colors, and techniques, which are very common to ukiyo-e artworks.

These traces and characteristics of ukiyo-e art cannot and should not be overlooked in the works of European artists.

Many European artists, Claude Monet, Mary Cassatt, and Edgar Degas among them, have been influenced by ukiyo-e art and the techniques of the art can be easily seen in their paintings. Thus, they copy not only colors and techniques, but even the scenery, the physical surrounding and images of women are very similar to ukiyo-e artworks. In some paintings, the influence of ukiyo-e art is very noticeable, while in others it is not so obvious. However, close analysis and comparison can reveal many similarities and thus the proof of the influence of the Japanese culture on modern painters. Having compared several paintings of impressionist painters and those from ukiyo-e art, Cooper (2020) concludes that these similarities show "how pervasive Japanese influence was on European artists in the years of the Impressionist movement" (26). Therefore, ukiyo-e artworks show not only Japanese culture, but also prove the great impact of this culture on modern art as well.

Surprisingly, the research analyzing ukiyo-e art started not in Japan where it originated, but in France and has always been highly regarded by other artists and art critics. Even today, this research of ukiyo-e artworks and woodblock prints in particular is still in process in Japan. Sugawara (2020) points out that even though many scholars claimed the end of ukiyo-e culture with the fall of Tokugawa's rule, it did not disappear completely and there are scholars who make attempts to popularize the ukiyo-e tradition even today. Thanks to the overseas researchers and analysts, such artists as Utamaro, Hokusai, and Sharaku gained their international recognition.

#### 2.2. History of anime, manga, and video games in Japan

Ukiyo-e, commonly known as "pictures of the floating world," refers to a form of Japanese woodcut prints depicting ordinary life, scenery, and popular customs. The rise in popularity of Ukiyo-e artwork was strongly influenced by the burgeoning of cities like Edo (current Tokyo), which created a demand for inexpensive prints that were straightforward to reproduce and spread (Tankha, 2021). The upsurge of a new group of consumers, the chonin, or townspeople, was one of the major cultural factors that drove the success of Ukiyo-e art. This populace consisted of merchants, artisans, and other city folk who had accessible funds and held an affinity for art and culture. Ukiyo-e prints were within reach and purchasable, granting this fresh class of patrons the ability to acquire and relish art for the first time. The emergence of kabuki theater gave an impetus to the popularity of Ukiyo-e art (Ohki, 2020). This form of entertainment captivated its spectators with its ornate costumes, outwardly emotive acting, and vivid backdrops. Consequently, Ukiyo-e artists created prints of kabuki actors and scenes from the plays which appealed greatly to theatregoers and art aficionados alike. Social forces likewise contributed to the growth of Ukiyo-e art. During the Edo period, Japan was managed by a stringent social structure that situated samurai at the top, trailed by agriculturists, artisans, and dealers (Bolitho et al, 2020). Samurai had to adhere to rigorous codes of conduct and dress, yet traders and townspeople were able to express themselves more freely through clothing, amusement, and art. Ukiyo-e prints mirrored this new sense of freedom and self-expression, depicting scenes from everyday life that were frequently comic or satirical.

The blooming of Ukiyo-e art was conclusively impacted by technology enhancements in woodblock stamping. Before the Edo time frame, woodblock stamping had largely been utilized for spiritual works and other sophisticated editions (Saaler, 2020). Nevertheless, during the Edo

period, inventions in printing technology enabled manufacturers to create enormous amounts of prints quickly and inexpensively. As a result, Ukiyo-e craftsmen had the capacity to make prints across a vast array of ideas and topics, covering from landscapes and portraits to exotic portrayals and themes taken from well-known culture. Ukiyo-e art was deeply impacted by contact with foreign cultures during the Edo years. Japan was mostly secluded from the outside world at the time, though there were a few exchanges with China, Korea, and other surrounding nations. These exchanges exposed fresh artistic methods and aesthetics that were ingrained into the Ukiyo-e art form. Ukiyo-e prints emerged from a collaborative approach embracing many craftspeople (Li, 2021). The artist first created a drawing on paper, which was then transferred to a woodblock by the carver. Utilizing the woodblock, the printer generated multiple copies of the print on paper. This process thereby enabled variations in color and surface as well as minute disparities between the individual prints.

The waning of Ukiyo-e art began to manifest towards the end of the Edo period as Japan's boundaries began to open up to outside contributions and the introduction of novel technologies. Despite the diminishing popularity, Ukiyo-e had a lasting resounding impact in Japan and beyond, rousing many renowned Western painters such as Vincent van Gogh and Paul Gauguin, and engendering the evolution of manga and anime domestically (Stirek, 2022). Generally, Ukiyo-e art during the Edo era was influenced by a multitude of sociocultural and technical aspects. This type of artwork mirrored an intensifying fascination with artistry and customs in metropolitan areas, as well as an inclination for self-expressivity and pleasure. The relatively low cost and easy accessibility of Ukiyo-e artworks made them a feasible choice for a newfound stratum of customers, while innovative advances in woodblock printing gave artists more opportunity to experiment with dissimilar styles and motifs. Today, Ukiyo-e art remains a significant part of

Japan's cultural legacy and continues to embolden current artists from all around the world. Ukiyoe art and its various forms is a genre originating form the East composed of woodblock prints that endured over the Edo period, from the seventeenth to nineteenth centuries. Ukiyo-e prints were crafted through a intricate process of woodblock printing, which consisted of carving numerous wooden blocks to make a multi-colored image. This process enabled the widespread production of prints, thus making them more affordable and open for wider consumption. Ukiyo-e art is renowned for its predominant use of striking lines and vibrant colors (Stirek, 2022). Through the application of thick, strongly-defined outlines, the artwork featured intense contrasts between lighter and darker areas, resulting in a captivating 3-dimensional look. Multiple color blocks were employed to generate intricate and complex images, facilitated by the printmaking technique. A distinguishing feature of Ukiyo-e artwork are the asymmetrical designs (Shi, and Zhou, 2023). Instead of sticking to strict uniformity and poise, Ukiyo-e painters specialized in utilizing curved lines and vivid outlines to produce a sense of energy and liveliness in their works. This technique was impacted by the conventional Japanese art, which highlighted the incorporation of blank spaces and induced movement.

Ukiyo-e prints were renowned for their light-heartedness and jocularity, particularly in depictions of everyday scenes. Representations of people in varying professions, at rest or engaged in diversions were oftentimes featured in these prints, and included whimsical or satirical themes. A momentous example is prints depicting sumo wrestlers, where their proportions or features were often exaggerated for the purpose of amusement. Ukiyo-e prints tend to demonstrate a potent quantity of narration or a tale in themselves (van der Eng, 2023). Illustrations of kabuki theater or the chronicles of days gone by were amongst the beloved matters of Ukiyo-e creators, who utilized their artworks to express an emotion of entertainment and feeling. This was attained via attentive

organization and the implementation of iconographic poses and emotions in the faces of the characters.

Finally, Ukiyo-e artwork demonstrated an aptitude for capturing the essence of an instant or sentiment. Rather than aiming for photographic verisimilitude, Ukiyo-e artisans endeavored to record the vibe or ambience of an image by employing shading, arrangement, and design (Grovier, 2023.). This technique enabled for a heightened level of affecting communication in their prints, which might evince sentiments of nostalgia, yearning, or elation. Ukiyo-e prints are esteemed for their illustrations that impart a feeling of motion and tempo. This impact is accomplished by the picturesque fusion of bent and inclined lines, which imply movement or evoke sound. For example, prints picturing waves take on a liquid character through the utilization of sinuous lines, while scenes depicting jam sessions may bring in diagonal shapes to signify the rhythm of the music. An extra quality of Ukiyo-e artwork is its usage of symbolism and allegory (Prinz, 2021). The creative masterminds behind these renowned works of art frequently capitalized on identifiable symbolic representations to impart more profound feelings and implications, such as the incorporation of cherry blossoms symbolizing delicacy or the depiction of dragons to symbolize might and authority.

Ukiyo-e woodblock prints from Japan's Edo period have influenced anime, manga, and video games. This chapter analyzes contemporary scholarly literature on Ukiyo-e's direct impact on modern entertainment. This chapter explores the interconnectivity of these aesthetic manifestations through history, evolution, and earlier research. Japan's Edo period's art reflects its cultural vigor and creative ability. Ukiyo-e woodblock prints have shaped modern visual media, including anime, manga, and video games (Cohen, 2019, p. 4). This chapter explores the deep and

direct impact of Ukiyo-e on these contemporary and internationally celebrated forms of artistic expression through a rigorous and contemporary assessment of scholarly literature. This investigation seeks to reveal the intricate connections between Ukiyo-e and modern anime, manga, and video games. This chapter traces artistic principles and visual narratives from the intimate and bustling streets of Edo-period Japan to the globally recognized screens and pages that captivate audiences today.

This exploration relies on historical background. Ukiyo-e's origins and appeal to the public may be traced to the Edo period's urban dynamism and social development. Ukiyo-e's essence was reborn in anime, manga, and video games, as shown in recent scholarly work. The trip goes beyond historical junctions. It follows prior research on Ukiyo-e's symbiotic relationship with modern art. Research illuminates dynamic compositions, emotional resonance, and fascinating worlds, crafting a narrative of continuity and innovation.

#### 2.3. Overview of Japanese Edo Period Art and Ukiyo-e

From 1603 to 1868, Japan saw great societal changes and creative vigor during the Edo period. The Tokugawa shogunate's tranquility fostered the creation of busy cities, thriving commerce, and a unique urban culture that would lead to the birth of Ukiyo-e, one of Japan's most recognizable and significant artistic expressions. According to Cohen, Ukiyo-e, "pictures of the floating world," captures Edo-period life's transience in an aesthetically engaging way (Cohen, 2019, p. 4). This genre of woodblock prints quickly became popular, portraying the metropolitan landscape and showing a world of beauty, pleasure, and leisure. A new urban bourgeoisie formed in cities like Edo (now Tokyo) to enjoy the culture's pleasures and diversions. Ukiyo-e's capacity to reflect life's many facets, from the mundane to the fantastic, was its allure.

Woodblocks and paper were meticulously engraved with scenes of bustling marketplaces, calm landscapes, and kabuki actors in extravagant costumes, beautiful courtesans, and famous monuments. These prints, often duplicated, allowed commoners to participate in the cultural scene around them. Thus, Ukiyo-e became ingrained in society and captured the public's imagination. Ukiyo-e prints democratized art by making fine art accessible to the public. Innovative mass production processes allowed these prints to be replicated and distributed on a scale previously inconceivable. Thus, Ukiyo-e shaped popular views and aesthetics, affecting taste and trends across the socioeconomic spectrum. The prints let viewers experience the splendor, beauty, and excitement of the floating world through aspiration and escape (Ellis, 2019, p. 3). Ukiyo-e influenced literature, fashion, and the performing arts. The intriguing characters and events in the woodblock prints inspired stories. People tried to replicate the idealized elegance and grace of the figures memorialized on paper, which influenced fashion. Even Kabuki Theater, a staple of Edo society, found synergy with Ukiyo-e, since players' likenesses were often printed, elevating their celebrity status and merging performance with visual representation.

Ukiyo-e's effect on anime, manga, and video games is even more apparent. Japan's visual media evolved from Ukiyo-e's influence on cultural sensibilities and narrative aesthetics in the Edo period. Anime, from "animation," has become a global phenomenon with its numerous genres, imaginative universes, and distinct aesthetic techniques. Anime uses Ukiyo-e's emphasis on dynamic compositions and emotional resonance to tell sophisticated, contemplative, and imaginative stories (Hammouri, 2022, p. 41). Ukiyo-e prints' beautiful detailing and painstaking craftsmanship inspired anime's meticulous animation techniques, which give characters and landscapes emotion and authenticity. Manga, Japan's unique graphic storytelling, has inherited

Ukiyo-e's storyline. Manga owes its visual storytelling to centuries of Ukiyo-e prints. Manga panels tell stories through dynamic, emotive graphic compositions, like Ukiyo-e prints. This heritage shows how Ukiyo-e's aesthetic ideals have smoothly integrated into modern manga storylines. Ukiyo-e's legacy has been used to create immersive environments in modern video games. Video game sceneries reflect Ukiyo-e's attention to detail and magical worlds. Ukiyo-e's artistic appeal inspired video games' visual and interactive narrative.

Ukiyo-e and modern visual media research has yielded several insights. Ukiyo-e's focus on transitory moments and emotional resonance has been translated into anime, manga, and video games' evocative storytelling and character development, according to scholars. Ukiyo-e, which shaped Edo-period society, continues to impact modern art. Despite the extensive scholarship, a significant research deficit emerges. There are few in-depth assessments of how Ukiyo-e aesthetics have been consciously adapted, referenced, or recreated in current anime, manga, and video games. This research examines select case studies to explain Ukiyo-e's direct impact on aesthetic and narrative aspects and how tradition and innovation coexist in these kinds of entertainment. Ukiyo-e's history illuminates its significant impact on modern visual media including anime, manga, and video games (Matsuoka, 2019, p. 145). Ukiyo-e's democratization of artistic expression, celebration of ordinary life, and interplay between aesthetics and popular culture profoundly influence modern entertainment. As we enter scholarly debate, we begin to connect the brief moments caught on Edo-period woodblocks to the dynamic and immersive worlds of modern visual tales.

#### 2.4. Evolution of Anime, Manga, and Video Games in Japan

Japan's anime, manga, and video game history includes a rich tapestry of cultural, creative, and technological influences. These arts, rooted in Japan's history, have flourished and contributed to world culture in distinctive and powerful ways. Anime, originating from "animation," has grown into a global craze. Jun'ichi Kōuchi's 1917 "Namakura Gatana" (An Obtuse Sword) pioneered it. Post-World War II Japan saw the rise of anime as a separate creative form, with titles like Osamu Tezuka's "Astro Boy" (Tetsuwan Atom, 1963) capturing domestic and worldwide audiences (Matsuoka, 2019, p. 145). This began anime's growth, which blended Japanese and Western animation styles. As it grew, anime became a canvas for creative expression and storytelling. Ukiyo-e prints' distinct aesthetic styles and emotive character designs resonated in anime characters, allowing designers to evoke complex emotions and connect with audiences.

Ukiyo-e's dynamic compositions and attention to detail influenced anime's character design, scene transitions, and visual narrative. Manga grew with anime in Japanese popular culture. Manga, meaning "whimsical pictures," has ancient roots in emakimono (handscrolls). Manga genres for diverse readers proliferated post-war. Osamu Tezuka, the "God of Manga," shaped manga with "Astro Boy" and "Black Jack." Manga and Ukiyo-e both use sequential drawings to tell stories and express emotions. Manga revived Ukiyo-e masters' composition, visual pace, and portrayal of deep emotions, establishing the art form's function as both amusement and social commentary (Matsuoka, 2019, p. 145). Ukiyo-e's interactive offspring, video games, have a unique place in entertainment. Video games swiftly progressed from simple experiences to intricate virtual worlds thanks to late 20th-century technology.

The elaborate depiction of settings, characters, and cultural intricacies in video games shows Ukiyo-e aesthetics. Ukiyo-e prints transported viewers to bright landscapes and intriguing

sights, and video games used their interactive nature to immerse players in a "floating world." Japanese anime, manga, and video games have become cultural touchstones, illustrating the nation's complex relationship between tradition and modernity. Each medium has its own qualities, but they all share Japan's historical and aesthetic narrative. Anime, a mix of local creativity and global inspirations, has become a global cultural export. Anime's emotive characters and magical surroundings reflect Ukiyo-e's emphasis on emotional resonance and dynamic composition. Ukiyo-e's ability to record the times is mirrored in anime's use of Japan's rich folklore, history, and social issues. Anime's ability to seamlessly switch genres and narratives creates immersive experiences that transcend cultural and linguistic barriers, like Ukiyo-e's depiction of the extraordinary and banal.

Manga draws directly from Ukiyo-e's sequential art. Manga panels, often meticulously constructed to depict movement and emotion, follow Ukiyo-e woodblocks. Manga's narrative richness, like Ukiyo-e prints, has allowed it to explore many themes and genres. Manga has become an introspective mirror of Japanese culture, tackling problems from personal identification to social critique. Manga is a living testimony to Ukiyo-e's storytelling legacy since it blends classic art with modern stories. Video games, the youngest of this trinity, have quickly become a global entertainment staple. Despite their technological differences from Ukiyo-e's woodblock prints, there are subtle similarities that demonstrate visual storytelling continuity. Video games revive Ukiyo-e's vibrant scenery and intriguing characters. Video game world-building and detail recall Ukiyo-e's depiction of complex emotions and settings. Ukiyo-e's ties to modern visual media are shown in scholarly studies. Scholars have examined thematic continuities, emotional resonance, and aesthetic features from Ukiyo-e to anime, manga, and video games.

Amidst this dialogue, a particular research gap emerges—a need for extensive studies of specific instances where Ukiyo-e aesthetics have been explicitly referenced, adopted, or reinterpreted in contemporary creations. This research addresses this gap by revealing select case studies that show how Ukiyo-e's visual vocabulary has smoothly blended with anime, manga, and video games' narrative and artistic approaches. Ukiyo-e aesthetics shaped Japanese anime, manga, and video games throughout history. Traditional artistic sensibilities and modern technology have allowed Ukiyo-e's concepts to be seamlessly integrated into different mediums, producing a sense of continuity through ages. Ukiyo-e prints and anime, manga, and video games demonstrate the potential of visual storytelling to transcend cultures and fascinate audiences. As we delve into the academic conversation surrounding this nuanced interplay, we begin to unravel the intricate threads that connect Edo-period art to the ever-changing landscapes of modern creative expression.

## 2.5. Previous Studies on the Influence of Ukiyo-e on Modern Visual Media

Scholars have studied the complex relationship between Ukiyo-e art and anime, manga, and video games. Extensive studies have revealed Ukiyo-e's tremendous influence on contemporary art. Scholars with an eye for detail have explored Ukiyo-e's influence, revealing surprising connections between the Edo period and the present. Ukiyo-e and current visual media share aesthetic traits, proving that certain artistic principles endure. Ukiyo-e's dynamic compositions, which conveyed movement and energy through skillfully organized forms, are reflected in anime, manga, and video games' finely created frames, sequential panels, and interactive panoramas. Ukiyo-e's compositional language brings characters and worlds to life across decades. Ukiyo-e's capacity to convey emotions has shaped current visual narratives. Ukiyo-e prints have a complex emotional resonance, which researchers have explored.

This focus on conveying emotion, whether it's the melancholy of passing beauty or the exuberance of a lively moment, matches anime, manga, and video games' emotional tapestry. Like Ukiyo-e artworks, these characters typically inspire strong emotions. Ukiyo-e's emotive currents resonate with modern sensibilities in anime, manga, and video game avatars. Ukiyo-e's fantasy worlds inspired anime, manga, and video games. Scholars have found Ukiyo-e's dreamscape in contemporary media's imaginary universes. The bright views, strange landscapes, and intriguing storytelling of Ukiyo-e prints have inspired innovators to create imaginative places on screens, pages, and interactive platforms (Cohen, 2019, p. 4). Anime's rich universes, manga's mystical landscapes, and video games' immersive environments all mimic Ukiyo-e's beautiful blurring of reality. While scholarship has helped trace these broad strokes of influence, a research gap emerges—a need for further inquiry into specific instances when Ukiyo-e aesthetics have been purposefully translated onto modern visual media. More detailed examinations are needed to reveal how Ukiyo-e's visual lexicon has been incorporated into modern art. Ukiyo-e has shaped storytelling, character development, and world building beyond aesthetics.

This study of Ukiyo-e's influence on modern visual media connects centuries of aesthetic traditions and storytelling. While existing research has revealed the overarching parallels and thematic echoes, the road ahead calls us to delve deeper into specific examples, unraveling the intricacies of adaptation, reinterpretation, and homage that link Ukiyo-e's heritage to contemporary creativity. The urge for more comprehensive investigations is not a criticism of earlier efforts but an invitation to delve deeper. Researchers can uncover Ukiyo-e's subtle influence on modern visual media by focusing on specific cases. In-depth investigations would reveal how anime, manga, and video games have adapted Ukiyo-e's artistic essence. Explore several paths. Consider how modern anime incorporates Ukiyo-e's emotional depth and visual energy. Scholarly inquiries could examine

situations or figures that demonstrate Ukiyo-e's ability to create intense emotions through visual narrative, revealing its careful craftsmanship that bridges the historical and current.

Manga stories that honor Ukiyo-e's themes can also show how cultural symbols and social commentary have changed through time. In video games, Ukiyo-e's exotic landscapes, architectural splendor, and human-supernatural interactions may inspire creators. Researchers can illuminate the delicate balance between tradition and innovation in these adaptations by evaluating their sophisticated design and narrative aspects. These examples show Ukiyo-e's actual influence. Scholars can uncover the intended homage to Ukiyo-e's aesthetics, the deliberate echoes of its emotional poignancy, and the subtle interplay between historical heritage and modern creation through granular analysis (Cohen, 2019, p. 4). These concentrated researches may expose the mechanisms of influence in unprecedented depth, expanding our understanding of how Ukiyo-e's brushstrokes have been translated onto current visual media. Finally, Ukiyo-e and current visual media resonate deeply. Scholars have skillfully navigated visual, philosophical, and emotional linkages, highlighting the lasting influence of anime, manga, and video games. As we explore this complex relationship, it becomes clear that the story is incomplete. We must examine particular, examine the intimate relationship between past and present, and show how Ukiyo-e's brushstrokes have created the modern media landscape.

# 2.6. Research Gap & Conceptual Framework

While the current body of scholarly work has undoubtedly illuminated the profound influence of Ukiyo-e on modern visual media animating the historical echo of woodblock prints within the dynamic realms of anime, manga, and video games there is a significant research gap that calls for further exploration. This gulf in precision calls for a more thorough investigation of

how Ukiyo-e aesthetics have been smoothly or quietly incorporated into different creative forms. The current literature covers the overarching themes and parallel narratives, but the intricate brushstrokes, the nuances woven into the visual tapestry, remain unexplored. This research explores specific case studies to show where Ukiyo-e's history meets anime, manga, and video game storytelling. The study uses this conceptual framework to create a multidimensional narrative that answers the what, how, and why. Ukiyo-e aesthetics will be methodically peeled to reveal the artistic alchemy that transforms tradition into innovation. The study will examine anime's use of Ukiyo-e's emotive power and compositional dynamism to give characters life and situations everlasting relevance. The study examines scene-by-scene design decisions and narrative consequences to show how Ukiyo-e's emotional depth relates to anime's evocative storytelling.

Manga allows for a closer look. The study examines panels, sequences, and chapters to find Ukiyo-e's aesthetic elements in manga's visual and narrative language. Ukiyo-e and manga's sequential form allows us to analyze not only individual images but also the rhythmic flow of emotions and themes evidence of a visual dialogue between the past and the present. Interactive and immersive video games invite new exploration. This project will explore virtual worlds where Ukiyo-e's landscapes, architectural aesthetics, and dreamlike atmospheres meet current gaming's interactive potential. The research examines game design, visual clues, and narrative choices to show how Ukiyo-e's fanciful depictions have been cleverly interwoven into these digital environments, encouraging players to participate in an artistic heritage. The research will use multiple methods to study these cases. Visual study, juxtaposition, and textual interpretation will reveal the complex relationship between Ukiyo-e and modern art. Semiotics, intertextuality, and

cultural legacy theories will help analyze the complex relationship between tradition and innovation.

This research hopes to clarify the complex relationship between traditional and modern art. The study uses case studies to show how Ukiyo-e's legacy is woven into anime, manga, and video games. Ukiyo-e's influence resonates in these specific circumstances, reminding us of the ongoing interaction between the past and the present that shapes the ever-changing canvas of artistic production. This research attempts to add to the growing debate that bridges the gap between traditional Edo-period art and the kaleidoscopic world of current visual media by analyzing specific instances of Ukiyo-e aesthetics being adopted and modified. This study is based on the idea that artistic legacy is alive and evolves via reinterpretation and homage. This research explores how Ukiyo-e's essence infuses anime, manga, and video games to enrich the discourse and highlight the cultural continuum that spans time.

Cultural translation and reinterpretation complicate these intricate links, which the study admits. Ukiyo-e and contemporary media raise concerns of cultural identity, worldwide reception, and tradition-innovation balance. These investigations matter to creators, consumers, and cultural businesses that define our narratives. This work uses thorough visual analysis, theoretical exploration, and multidisciplinary involvement. Visual analysis will reveal Ukiyo-e-inspired visual signals, emotional resonances, and narrative implications in anime, manga, and video games. This will be accompanied with a theoretical lens from semiotics, intertextuality, and cultural studies to explore how these aspects work in a larger cultural and creative context. This study should enrich academic dialogue and the creative sectors. By highlighting the purposeful and nuanced ways Ukiyo-e aesthetics are blended into current visual media, creators may find new ways to innovate

and reimagine their narratives while honoring a rich artistic legacy. These media may also make viewers more aware of the visual cues and narrative strands that connect their entertainment to centuries-old culture.

The interaction between Ukiyo-e and modern visual media is not just an academic exercise but a reflection of artistic legacy. Ukiyo-e aesthetics' purposeful or unconscious incorporation into contemporary art provides a panoramic view of tradition's transformation in the face of innovation. The study deconstructs and analyzes anime, manga, and video game case studies. Ukiyo-e's impact is revealed in the frames, panels, and pixels. The study's focus on these specifics illuminates the delicate brushstrokes that flawlessly combine past and present without fragmenting the narrative. This study uses semiotics, intertextuality, and cultural studies to navigate the complex intersection between conventional aesthetics and contemporary narratives. This conceptual framework allows visual cues, thematic threads, and cultural resonances to be deciphered. Theory illuminates the influence labyrinth. This research may have implications outside academia. Creators, storytellers, and visual artists might benefit from a greater appreciation of Ukiyo-e's past by discovering new ways to innovate and honor tradition. These artists may create global narratives by honoring the past and using modern means. The study also benefits anime, manga, and video game fans. Audiences can enjoy these mediums more by knowing the subtle connections to Japan's Edo era aesthetic legacy. They meet an evolution of visual storytelling that has enthralled audiences for decades.

Ukiyo-e prints capture transitory moments, whereas anime, manga, and video games immerse viewers in them. The study explores the ties between tradition and innovation and celebrates the everlasting debate that reminds us that art, in all its forms, is a continuum that spans

generations, cultures, and creative expressions. This conceptual framework explores the subtle connections between Ukiyo-e's legacy and anime, manga, and video game tales. This study analyzes selected case studies to better comprehend the continuous relationship between tradition and modernity. Ukiyo-e aesthetics has a deliberate and subconscious impact. Ukiyo-e's brushstrokes reverberate as pages turn, pixels flicker, and screens brighten with the lively narratives of current visual media, reminding us of the unbroken thread that knits the tapestry of artistic production across the epochs.

## 2.7. Summary

In this chapter, we traced Ukiyo-e's growth and its impact on anime, manga, and video games. The introduction established Ukiyo-e's cultural significance and influence on modern entertainment. The historical overview took us to Edo-period Japan's bustling streets and showed Ukiyo-e's accessibility and democratization, laying the groundwork for its lasting effect. We experienced cultural and technological change through anime, manga, and video games. Ukiyo-e's descendants were anime, manga, and video games. The centuries-old concepts of emotional resonance, dynamic compositions, and fantasy universes weave through modern media's complex storylines. We then examined the rich scholarship on Ukiyo-e and modern visual media. We explored the aesthetic, thematic, and narrative analogies scholars found to show how tradition and modernity interact. However, a noteworthy research vacuum emerged—a request for in-depth assessments of specific cases when Ukiyo-e aesthetics have been purposefully infused into anime, manga, and video games, highlighting the minutiae of impact that frequently evade bigger conversations. The research gap inspired this study's conceptual framework. The study examines Ukiyo-e's direct influence on aesthetic and narrative components in selected case studies. We aim

to unveil the artistic alchemy that transforms tradition into innovation through thorough visual examination and theoretical exploration. The chapter celebrated the ongoing dialogue between Ukiyo-e and current visual media across time and culture. Ukiyo-e's effect on specific works will reveal the connections between past and present, tradition and innovation, enriching both scholarly debate and artistic practice. This chapter traveled from Edo's busy streets to anime, comics, and video games. It celebrated Ukiyo-e's affinity with current media while noting the unknown realms that await exploration. With a conceptual framework, the research explores the tight relationship between previous brushstrokes and present pixels. We want to appreciate the continuous thread of artistic legacy across time and culture through this project.

## **Chapter 3: Methodology**

#### 3.1. Introduction

The Japanese Edo period Art, known as Ukiyo-e, holds a significant place in the nation's cultural heritage, renowned for its stunning woodblock prints depicting the fleeting and floating world of the urban lifestyle. Urban culture flourished, especially in Edo (Tokyo) and Kyoto. Ukiyo-e artists depicted kabuki performers, sumo wrestlers, landscapes, attractive women, historical events, and folklore. The prints were affordable enough for the growing urban middle class. Ukiyo-e shaped and reflected Edo period social, cultural, and political events. Today, Japan's effect on global popular culture is evident, especially in anime, manga, and video games. These media have global appeal. Modern Anime, Manga, and video games resemble Ukiyo-e in style, storytelling, and theme, prompting historians and fans to wonder if the two art forms are related (Cohen, 2019, p. 4). This chapter examines how Ukiyo-e has influenced current anime, manga, and video games. The chapter examines Ukiyo-e's influence on current media by assessing its creative components, thematic parallels, and cultural context. Qualitative research allows for in-depth examination and discovery of subtle connections. Case studies will analyze specific Ukiyo-e influences in chosen Anime, Manga, and video games. Interviews with Japanese art and popular culture historians and creators will also add perspective. This chapter will add to the literature on traditional and contemporary art and Japanese visual culture. It will also increase awareness of Ukiyo-e's lasting influence on modern art. Understanding Ukiyo-e's roots in anime, manga, and video games can expose Japan's rich cultural and aesthetic heritage.

#### 3.2. Research Philosophy

Research philosophy informs the researcher's approach, assumptions, and views about reality and how to examine it. This qualitative study examines the direct influence of Japanese Edo

era art (Ukiyo-e) on modern Anime, Manga, and video games. This section explains why qualitative research was chosen and briefly examines other philosophical perspectives.

#### 3.2.1. Rationale for Qualitative Research

Qualitative research is ideal for studying complicated, culturally situated phenomena like art influence, which require a comprehensive grasp of context and participant viewpoints. This qualitative study explores Ukiyo-e's lasting visual, thematic, and narrative influences on modern media. Ukiyo-e evolved from the Edo period's urban lifestyle and popular culture. Modern Anime, Manga, and video games reinterpret and adapt themes and aesthetic approaches from it. Qualitative research allows for extensive analysis and interpretation of these nuanced and context-specific linkages. Qualitative research fits the exploratory study's purpose of comprehending the topic. The study investigates Ukiyo-e's impact on modern media through in-depth interviews with professionals and enthusiasts. These perspectives enhance the research topic. Qualitative study also examines art's emotional, cultural, and historical effects. This research examines modern media's interpretations of Ukiyo-e to reveal the forces that have created the creative environment.

## 3.2.2. Rejected Alternative Philosophical Stances

Quantitative research, which uses numbers to find patterns and links, was rejected. Quantitative study is useful for statistical generalization but not for cultural and subjective art influence. Ukiyo-e's influence on modern media is complicated, involving artistic decisions, cultural representations, and creative interpretations (Ellis, 2019, p. 3). Quantitative techniques may miss Ukiyo-e's context-specific linkages to modern media. Mixed methods research was another philosophical approach. The study focuses on Ukiyo-e's qualitative influence; however

mixed techniques can provide a broad perspective. Quantitative data may complicate analysis without adding value to the study subject.

#### 3.2.3. Justification for Qualitative Research

Numerous academic references support a qualitative research philosophy for studying cultural phenomena and artistic effect. Qualitative research can describe complicated human experiences in vivid detail, according to Creswell (2014). Qualitative research is ideal for cultural and social contexts because it allows for in-depth meaning analysis, according to Denzin and Lincoln (2019). Qualitative research is also useful for examining natural occurrences and participant perspectives, according to Silverman (2018). Qualitative research provides for a comprehensive examination of Ukiyo-e and modern media's cultural roots.

Charmaz (2020) notes that qualitative research is necessary for theoretical comprehension, which is pertinent to this study's purpose of studying Ukiyo-e's lasting impact on contemporary media. Qualitative research uncovers patterns and themes that inform theory. Ukiyo-e directly influenced modern Anime, Manga, and video games, hence a qualitative research approach is justified (Hammouri, 2022, p. 41). This method allows us to better grasp Japan's growing visual culture and its global effect by examining the cultural, creative, and historical ties between traditional and modern art forms. The study explores Ukiyo-e's lasting impact on contemporary art by concentrating on participants' subjective interpretations.

## 3.3. Research Strategy

The research plan describes how the research question and objectives will be addressed.

Qualitative research is best for studying how Japanese Edo period art (Ukiyo-e) influenced current

anime, manga, and video games. This section defends qualitative research, rejects other methodologies, and describes the sampling strategy.

#### 3.3.1. Rationale for Qualitative Research Strategy

Qualitative research provides for in-depth examination, interpretation, and comprehension of the complex nature of art influence. The research examines artistic aspects, thematic parallels, and cultural background to find the underlying linkages between Ukiyo-e and current media. Qualitative approaches reflect the subtleties and distinct views that influence classic and modern art forms. This study examines Ukiyo-e influence's visual styles, storytelling methods, and thematic choices rather than its frequency or predominance. Qualitative data allows a complete investigation of specific instances of Ukiyo-e impact on selected Anime, Manga, and video games, revealing how historical art has been reinvented in the present period. Qualitative research fits the exploratory investigation. Understanding the research issue is more important than testing a hypothesis. When examining complex cultural issues with little preceding research, this approach allows the researcher to examine multiple dimensions and perspectives.

## 3.3.2. Rejected Alternative Research Strategies

Quantitative research uses numerical data to find patterns and relationships. Quantitative methods can generalize, but they may not capture art influence's subtleties and subjectivity. Qualitative methods are best for studying Ukiyo-e's influence on modern media's intricate interaction of creative choices, cultural representations, and historical reinterpretations. Mixed methods research blends qualitative and quantitative methodologies for a more complete view. This study focused on qualitative Ukiyo-e influence, hence this approach was discarded. Quantitative data may complicate analysis without adding value to the study subject.

## 3.3.3. Justification for Qualitative Research Strategy

Qualitative research can reveal how Ukiyo-e directly influenced modern Anime, Manga, and video games. Qualitative research is ideal for examining cultural phenomena and social situations, according to Denzin and Lincoln (2019). Qualitative research is ideal for inductive explorations and data-driven theories and explanations, according to Creswell (2014). The qualitative research technique fits this exploratory study's purpose of identifying and interpreting Ukiyo-e's influence on current media. Qualitative research enables deeper knowledge of individuals' viewpoints and experiences, according to Patton (2018). In this study, interviewing Japanese art history specialists, Anime, Manga, and video game makers, and aficionados will reveal their perceptions and experiences of Ukiyo-e influence.

## 3.3.4. Sampling Strategy

The sampling technique must include varied opinions and expertise on Ukiyo-e's impact on modern media. Purposive sampling is used to choose people with relevant knowledge and expertise. Japanese history and Ukiyo-e art historians can explain its historical context, artistic elements, and cultural relevance. Their knowledge will contextualize and identify modern media themes and motifs. Manga, anime, and video game creators: Media artists will discuss how Ukiyo-e influences their work. Understanding their creative processes and motivations will illuminate historical art adaption into modern storytelling.

Ukiyo-e and modern media enthusiasts can help audiences grasp the influence. They'll add variety to the analysis. Purposive sampling targets study participants with relevant expertise and knowledge. This method captures a wide range of perspectives, resulting in a more complete grasp of the research issue. Qualitative study provides for in-depth exploration, interpretation, and comprehension of Ukiyo-e's direct influence on modern Anime, Manga, and video games.

Focusing on qualitative factors justifies rejecting alternative procedures, while purposeful sampling assures diverse and competent participation. The study uses these methods to examine Ukiyo-e's lasting influence on modern media and global art.

Qualitative study can reveal how Ukiyo-e has shaped modern media, but it has limitations. These constraints may restrict the findings' applicability. Qualitative research does not seek statistical generalizability. The results may not apply to all Ukiyo-e-influenced media. Thus, the study's findings are case-specific. Qualitative data interpretation is subjective and biased by the researcher. Preconceptions may influence data analysis and results notwithstanding the researcher's neutrality. This constraint will be addressed through careful data analysis and reflexivity throughout the research process. Qualitative research, especially in-depth interviews and complicated data analysis, takes time and resources. This study attempts to balance depth and efficiency, although time and resources may restrict the number of examples analyzed.

Purposive sampling may still introduce bias. Participants may not fully represent Ukiyo-e's influence on modern media. To overcome this constraint, the study will seek diverse volunteers from various origins and perspectives. Personal interpretations may raise ethical issues. To safeguard participants' privacy and encourage open sharing, responses must be confidential and anonymous. Triangulation can improve a qualitative study's rigor despite its limits. Triangulation includes confirming conclusions with several methodologies, data sources, or researchers. Qualitative and quantitative data or diverse research methods can strengthen the study's conclusions. Content analysis of visual aspects in Anime, Manga, and video games could supplement qualitative data from interviews. To ensure inter-rater reliability and reduce bias, many researchers may independently analyze data and compare results.

Qualitative research is justified for this study despite its limitations. Ukiyo-e's historical, creative, and cultural influences on modern media are the main focus. Quantitative tools cannot adequately capture the richness and subjectivity of art influence, but qualitative ones can. Qualitative research reveals participants' experiences, perspectives, and insights, enriching the influence study. While generalizability may be restricted, the study hopes to provide significant insights and theories that can inform future research.

## 3.4. Research Design

The research design outlines the detailed plan for how the study will be conducted, including the approach to data collection, data analysis, and the design of interviews/surveys/questionnaires. In this investigation of the direct influence of Japanese Edo period Art (Ukiyo-e) on modern Anime, Manga, and video games, the research design employs a qualitative approach. This section provides an overview of the research design, the design of interviews, and the adopted sampling strategy.

#### 3.4.1. Research Methodology

This case study is exploratory. Case studies are ideal for studying complicated, diverse phenomena in real life. This study investigates how Ukiyo-e has influenced current anime, manga, and video games. In-depth analysis of chosen cases reveals how Ukiyo-e's components have been incorporated and reinterpreted in modern media. Qualitative research emphasizes vivid descriptions and interpretations. Semi-structured interviews and literature reviews collect qualitative data. Thematic analysis finds themes in interview replies and literature. The study's conclusions are strengthened by the triangulation of interviews and literature review.

#### 3.4.2. Interview Design

This study relies on semi-structured interviews. Semi-structured interviews allow participants to elaborate while staying focused on the study issue. The interviews aim to capture participants' Ukiyo-e-influenced experiences, interpretations, and insights.

Purposive sampling will pick interviewees. Japanese art history, anime, manga, video game production, and Ukiyo-e and current media appreciation are the sampling criteria. To fully investigate the influence, the researcher will recruit a varied sample of people from different backgrounds and perspectives. Interview Structure: Due to geographical constraints, interviews will be done via video conference. Semi-structured conversations will allow for open-ended debates while keeping the study topic in mind.

Participants can comment on their experiences and ideas by answering broad and specific questions in the interview guide.

Interview topics: The conversation will cover Ukiyo-e's impact on modern media, including: Artistic Elements: Participants will be asked about modern media's Ukiyo-e themes and visuals. Find reoccurring themes and styles. Storytelling Techniques: The interviews will examine how Anime, Manga, and video games have adopted Ukiyo-e's storytelling strategies. Cultural Representation: Discuss how Ukiyo-e's depiction of Japanese culture and society is represented in modern media. Emotional Impact: The interviews will examine Ukiyo-e's impact on modern media's makers and audiences.

Challenges and Innovations: Participants will discuss their experiences incorporating Ukiyo-e into contemporary media. Artistic Expression: The interviews will explore how Ukiyo-e's influence has changed with shifting cultural situations. Data Collection and Analysis: Interviews will be audio-recorded and transcribed. Interview replies will be thematically analyzed. To fully

explore the research subject, data analysis will be iterative, involving numerous rounds of coding and interpretation. Integration with Literature Review: To broaden the study, the interview findings will be combined with the literature review. The literature review will compare historical Ukiyo-e examples with present media examples from interviewees.

## 3.4.3. Detailing Adopted Sampling Strategy

Purposive sampling, deliberately selecting people based on criteria, is used. Purposive sampling ensures that the study includes varied perspectives and insights from experts in the research subject. Interviewee Selection Criteria: Japanese art historians and scholars who grasp Ukiyo-e's historical context and creative components. Anime, Manga, and Video Game Creators: Contemporary media artists who have created Ukiyo-e-influenced anime, manga, and games. Ukiyo-e and modern media enthusiasts can provide useful insights as art consumers and interpreters. Data saturation will determine the sample size.

Data saturation will determine the sample size to comprehend Ukiyo-e's influence. Purposive sampling using professional networks, online forums, and social media will recruit participants. The researcher will explain the research goals, interview process, and optional involvement. Ethical Considerations: All participant recruiting and data gathering shall be ethical. All participants will give informed consent to ensure they understand the research's goal and their ability to withdraw without penalty. Data analysis and reporting will protect participant privacy.

#### 3.5. Research Administration

Study administration comprises collecting, organizing, and analyzing data to answer the study question on how Japanese Edo period art (Ukiyo-e) influenced current Anime, Manga, and

video games. This section details interview administration, data collecting, cleaning, organization, and high-level data analysis design.

## 3.5.1. Conducting Interviews

- Step 1: Purposive sampling will recruit participants. The researcher will recruit volunteers through professional networks, online forums, and social media. They'll learn about the study's goals, interview method, and optional participation.
- Step 2: Informed permission: Before the interviews, participants will be given informed permission forms detailing the research's aim, audio recording, confidentiality, and their right to withdraw at any time without penalty. Signing the consent form indicates participation.
- Step 3: Scheduling Interviews: After informed consent, the researcher will organize interviews at mutually convenient times. Remote interviews will employ Zoom or Skype due to participant variety.
- Step 4: Semi-structured interviews: The interview guide includes general and particular questions regarding Ukiyo-e's influence on modern Anime, Manga, and video games. The researcher will ask open-ended questions to get individuals to share their thoughts.
- Step 5: Audio Recording: Interviews will be recorded with participants' approval to ensure accurate responses. Interviews will also be recorded with detailed notes.

Data Gathering

- Step 6: Transcription: After the interviews, the audio will be transcribed verbatim. Participants' responses will be transcribed, assuring data accuracy and richness.
- Step 7: Data Cleaning: To protect participants' confidentiality, the transcriptions will be cleaned. Data analysis participants will receive pseudonyms to safeguard their identity.

Data Management

Step 8: Data Storage: To maintain secrecy, all data, including audio recordings and transcriptions, will be saved on password-protected devices. Data will only be accessible to researchers and authorized personnel.

Step 9: Data Coding and Analysis: Thematic analysis will reveal patterns, themes, and categories in interview responses. Iterative analysis will assure data exploration.

Data Analysis Plan

Step 10: Initial Coding: The researcher will open code the interview transcripts to find useful data units. These units will be coded for themes.

Step 11: Data Organization: Qualitative data analysis software like NVivo organizes coded data. The analytical program manages and retrieves data efficiently.

Step 12: Theme Development: Constant comparison and grouping of coded data will reveal Ukiyo-e's influence on current media's patterns and repeating ideas.

Step 13: Validity Checks: The researcher will check members to improve findings validity and dependability. Sharing the preliminary findings with a subset of participants verifies the accuracy and interpretation of their responses.

Step 14: Interpretation and Integration: Interview themes and interpretations will be combined with the literature review to comprehend Ukiyo-e's influence on current media. Traditional and contemporary art genres will be compared historically, artistically, and culturally.

Step 15: Research Report Writing: The research report presents the study's findings, interpretations, and conclusions. Interviews and the literature study will support the report's analysis of Ukiyo-e's impact on modern anime, manga, and video games.

#### 3.6. Research Ethic

Human participant research ethics is crucial. This section discusses the ethical implications of research on Ukiyo-e's direct influence on current anime, manga, and video games. It describes how participants are protected and assures ethical research.

#### 3.6.1. Informed Consent

Informed consent is a major ethical issue in human research. Before participating, participants must understand the research's goal, procedures, risks, and rewards. Informed consent lets study participants choose to participate. The researcher will prioritize informed consent from all participants in this study. Before the interviews, participants will get a full informed consent form detailing the research's goals, hazards, use of audio recordings, data confidentiality, and opportunity to withdraw without penalty. Informed consent promotes voluntary participation, so participants can review and ask questions about the permission form before providing their consent. They can leave the study at any moment without harming the researcher or their organization.

#### **3.6.2.** Confidentiality and Anonymity

Ethical Implications: Participants' privacy and freedom to express their experiences and thoughts depend on confidentiality and anonymity. Participants must believe their personal information and replies will be kept confidential. Methods: The researcher will protect participants' privacy and anonymity. Password-protected devices will store all data, including audio recordings and transcriptions. Data analysis and reporting will be anonymous via pseudonyms. Data cleaning will remove names and details, and the research report will limit direct quotes to protect participants.

#### **3.6.3.** Beneficence and Non-Maleficence

Ethics: Beneficence maximizes benefits and minimizes harm. Non-maleficence protects research subjects from undue harm. The researcher will prioritize participant well-being throughout

the investigation. The researcher will explain the research goals, risks, and advantages before conducting interviews. Participants will be told they can skip questions or not answer if they feel uncomfortable. The researcher will immediately assist any distressed interviewee. Ukiyo-e's influence on modern media will also be studied, avoiding sensitive issues or intrusive questions that could injure.

#### 3.6.4. Respect for Autonomy

Ethical Implications: Autonomy requires that participants have the freedom to choose their research participation. Participants must be independent and able to consent.

Steps: The researcher will respect participants' autonomy during the study. Before signing the informed consent form, participants will have time to ask questions. They can quit the study without penalty.

#### 3.6.5. Data Protection and Storage

Ethical Implications: Protecting participants' personal data and replies is crucial. Steps: All study data, including audio recordings and transcriptions, will be stored on password-protected devices. Data will only be accessible to the researcher and authorized research participants. Data will be safely erased after ethical rules dictate.

## 3.6.6. Ethical Approval

Ethical Considerations: Institutional review boards (IRBs) or ethics committees must approve human participant research. Ethical approval guarantees the study satisfies ethical standards and protects participant rights and well-being.

Steps: The researcher will get ethical approval from the IRB or ethics committee before starting the research. The research proposal, informed consent form, data handling protocols, and

data protection measures will be reviewed and approved. The IRB's suggestions will be addressed before the trial begins.

#### 3.7. Methodology Restriction

Every research method has limits that affect its scope, generalizability, and validity. This section discusses the limitations of the qualitative research approach used to study the direct influence of Japanese Edo period Art (Ukiyo-e) on modern Anime, Manga, and video games. Understanding these limitations helps identify shortcomings and illuminates the research's limits and ramifications.

#### 1. Limitations

Qualitative research is constrained by its generalizability. Qualitative research examines specific cases, people, or contexts. Thus, the study's conclusions may not apply to other people or situations. Importance: The limitation of generalizability is especially essential when studying Ukiyo-e's influence on modern media. The research's concentration on chosen Anime, Manga, and video games may not reflect Ukiyo-e's global influence on modern culture. Thus, without quantifiable data, broad assumptions about Ukiyo-e's influence should be avoided. Every research method has limits that affect its scope, generalizability, and validity. This section discusses the limitations of the qualitative research approach used to study the direct influence of Japanese Edo period Art (Ukiyo-e) on modern Anime, Manga, and video games. Understanding these limitations helps identify shortcomings and illuminates the research's limits and ramifications.

## 2. Subjectivity, Bias

Since researchers interpret data, qualitative research is subject to bias and subjectivity. The researcher's background, cultural environment, and personal interests may affect data analysis,

theme selection, and study focus. To keep research impartial, legitimate, and reliable, these biases must be addressed. Qualitative researchers collect, analyze, and interpret data. Qualitative data is descriptive and context-dependent, requiring the researcher to make meaning of it. Quantitative data is numerical and objective. Qualitative research is interpretative, therefore the researcher's presence and perspective influence the results. The researcher's bias and subjectivity can show in Ukiyo-e's influence on modern Anime, Manga, and video games. The researcher's knowledge and attitudes about Ukiyo-e and current media may affect interview interpretation (Matsuoka, 2019, p. 145). The researcher's assessment of participants' responses may highlight or downplay particular topics. The researcher finds themes and patterns when analyzing data. The researcher's Ukiyo-e knowledge and interests may impact theme selection. This could lead to omissions or overemphasis. Ukiyo-e's influence on current media may be skewed by the researcher's tastes. These preferences may unintentionally affect the sample or response analysis.

Qualitative researchers can address subjectivity and bias and improve objectivity. Researchers must recognize their prejudices. Reflexivity entails critically scrutinizing one's own assumptions, values, and preconceptions during study. The researcher will keep a record of personal reflections, decisions, and data analysis influences. Collaborating with peers and experts can reduce biases. Peer review and consultation provide an outside viewpoint on research, data analysis, and interpretation, enabling a more balanced and objective approach. The researcher can reduce bias by cross-validating findings and themes using multiple data sources. Triangulation uses several data sources, methods, and researchers to verify results. The researcher will outline data analysis. Transparency helps readers understand how themes and interpretations were identified, boosting study trustworthiness. Researcher actively seeks disconfirming evidence or alternate explanations for themes. The researcher can avoid bias by questioning their own views of Ukiyo-

e's influence. Qualitative research on Ukiyo-e's influence on current Anime, Manga, and video games faces prejudice and subjectivity. The researcher's views and perspectives can affect data analysis and study emphasis. Reflexivity, peer review, triangulation, and data analysis openness can reduce biases and improve study objectivity and rigor. Acknowledging these potential limits ensures that the research remains a rigorous exploration of Ukiyo-e's impact, providing vital insights into the complex relationship between traditional and contemporary aesthetic manifestations.

#### 3. Time and resource constraints

Qualitative research requires time and resources for data collection, transcription, analysis, and interpretation. However, time and budget constraints can limit the research's depth, reach, and capacity to examine Ukiyo-e's influence on modern Anime, Manga, and video games. Qualitative research investigates personal viewpoints, experiences, and cultural situations. Recruitment, arranging, and conducting interviews or focus groups take time. Audio transcription takes time, and data processing requires precision. The qualitative researcher's thoroughness may limit the study's scope. Time and budget constraints can affect Ukiyo-e's influence on modern media research: Ukiyo-e's impact may be restricted by time constraints. Small samples may underrepresent varied opinions and experiences relating to the research subject. Data gathering and analysis time may limit the investigation. Ukiyo-e's effect may need to be narrowed, ignoring other related topics or incidents. Ukiyo-e's influence on current media may be limited by time. Ukiyo-e's influence on modern art may be underrepresented in the study.

The study will use numerous methods to overcome time and resource restrictions and expand its scope: Purposive sampling will choose people with deep knowledge of Ukiyo-e's impact on modern media. To present a broad perspective, experts, industry leaders, and varied backgrounds

will be selected. Despite the small sample size, individuals will be selected to reflect Ukiyo-e's effect. To capture diverse experiences, the research will include producers, scholars, enthusiasts, and consumers from different areas and cultures. Given limits, data collection will focus on indepth and useful information. Interviews using open-ended questions will allow participants to contribute their thoughts and experiences, deepening the research. The research will gather and analyze data until topic saturation. Thematic saturation occurs when data no longer yields fresh themes and ideas, showing sufficient depth. Qualitative research on Ukiyo-e and modern Anime, Manga, and video games is limited by time and resources. The research seeks to overcome these limitations by carefully selecting a wide range of participants, focusing on relevant data collecting, and striving for thematic saturation. The research may not cover every case of impact, but it aims to provide a full understanding of the dynamic interplay between traditional and modern artistic expressions, helping to preserve cultural legacy in art.

#### 4. Time/Context

Limitation: Ukiyo-e's influence on modern media may change throughout time and between cultures and societies. Artistic expressions and societal influences change over time, making snapshot studies difficult. Importance: The research will focus on contemporary Anime, Manga, and video games due of Ukiyo-e's dynamic influence. This technique may not fully capture Ukiyo-e's influence on modern media's history or future. Researchers should be conscious of this restriction when evaluating the results and undertake longitudinal research to track influence changes over time.

#### 5. Sampling Bias?

Limitation: Purposive sampling may introduce bias. The selected participants may not properly represent Ukiyo-e's influence on modern media, skewing opinions. Importance: To reduce

sample bias, the study will recruit a wide group of Ukiyo-e and current media enthusiasts. Triangulating information from various participants with different perspectives can assist explain Ukiyo-e's influence?

#### 6. Ethics

Qualitative research must be ethical. Qualitative research generally explores personal experiences and emotions, making ethical considerations more complicated. This section explores the ethical constraints and importance of ethical research on the direct influence of Japanese Edo period art (Ukiyo-e) on current Anime, Manga, and video games. Qualitative research deepens participant engagement, explores viewpoints, and understands life experiences. Personal narratives and emotions may pose ethical issues. Ukiyo-e's effect may cause participants to reveal painful or sensitive experiences. Research participants' well-being, privacy, and rights are crucial. Ethical rules safeguard participants and ensure voluntary, informed engagement. Ethical considerations protect participants' dignity and confidentiality in Ukiyo-e's impact research.

The research has taken numerous ethical steps: Participants are informed of the study's aim, procedures, risks, and benefits before participation. Signing an informed consent form indicates their willing participation without coercion. The research protects participants' privacy. The researcher and authorized team members get password-protected access to all data, including audio recordings and transcriptions. Data analysis and reporting are secured by pseudonyms. Researchers respect participants' autonomy. They can skip questions, deny participation, or leave the research without penalty. The researcher empowers people to decide whether to participate. The study acknowledges that individuals may disclose sensitive or emotional Ukiyo-e-related experiences. If interviewees are upset, the researcher offers support. Institutional review board or ethics committee

approval was obtained for the research. To verify ethical compliance, the research proposal, informed consent form, data handling protocols, and data protection measures were examined.

Despite ethical attempts, research may present ethical issues. Some issues may be uncomfortable for participants to discuss. The researcher should anticipate these issues and adapt to participants' needs. The researcher ensures participants feel comfortable and valued by creating a trusting and open setting. Participants can ask questions and discuss the research's implications after interviews. To minimize prejudice, the researcher critically examines their values, assumptions, and biases. Qualitative research on Ukiyo-e's influence on current media requires ethical issues. Informed permission, confidentiality, and participant autonomy address ethical difficulties in the research. The research values participants' contributions and protects their rights and well-being, despite ethical issues. The research's ethical approach yields relevant and valid insights on Ukiyo-e's lasting influence on modern art, enhancing art's appreciation of cultural heritage.

## 7. Few Quantitative Triangulation Data

Limitation: The research is mostly qualitative, therefore triangulation may be restricted. Importance: While the research's main focus is qualitative inquiry, including some quantitative data, such as statistics on Ukiyo-e themes in modern media, could improve its rigor and provide viewpoints. The study's scope and resources may prevent quantitative data collecting.

#### 3.8. Chapter Conclusion

Anime, manga, and video games have been directly influenced by Japanese Edo period art (Ukiyo-e). Qualitative research allowed for in-depth exploration, interesting insights, and participant perspectives on Ukiyo-e's lasting influence on modern media. Ukiyo-e inspires anime,

manga, and video games, according to the findings. Ukiyo-e's aesthetic themes, storytelling approaches, and cultural representations demonstrate its adaptability in a modern environment. Interviews with scholars, creators, and enthusiasts illuminated Ukiyo-e's multidimensional influence. Ethical considerations protected participant rights, privacy, and well-being throughout the research. To protect participants' voluntary contributions, informed consent, confidentiality, and autonomy were stressed.

However, the research approach has limits. The study's qualitative character prevents broad generalizations about Ukiyo-e's impact without more quantitative data. Subjectivity and bias can affect data analysis, requiring researcher reflexivity and peer feedback for validation. Time and resources limited Ukiyo-e media exploration. Selected cases provided depth but may not fully convey the dynamic and evolving nature of impact through time and across cultures. Despite these restrictions, the research sheds light on how Ukiyo-e has shaped modern Anime, Manga, and video games. Qualitative data analysis revealed reoccurring themes and motifs, showing how classic art aspects remain in contemporary work. The report calls for longitudinal studies and quantitative data to support its conclusions, laying the groundwork for future research. Ukiyo-e's influence on modern media shows art's continuity and interconnectivity. Traditional cultural legacy in popular media is a dynamic cultural exchange. The study emphasizes the value of maintaining artistic heritage and its capacity to inspire new works.

## **Chapter 4: Findings**

#### 4.1. Introduction

The findings section of this dissertation generally provides and analyze the primary outcomes of the study, emphasizing significant observations, patterns, correlations, or trends that arose from the gathered data. Hence, the purpose of this section is to provide an impartial account and analysis of the facts, devoid or personal viewpoints or biases. This will be achieved via the use of written descriptions and tables to portray the material obtained throughout the research. Typically, the discovery phase of a study serves to address the research inquiries and facilitate the achievement of the overarching research goals. The Ukiyo-e genre, which emerged during the Edo era (1603-1868), has had a significant influence on contemporary media, including anime, manga, and video games. Ukiyo-e, a widely embraced art style using woodblock printing techniques, effectively portrays the essence of urban life by means of visually engaging depictions of landscapes, routine pursuits, and renowned individuals. By means of meticulous study and in-depth examination of case studies. The finding from this research shows that Ukiyo-e-inspired artwork serves as a significant catalyst for narrative expression and the cultivation of aesthetic principles within various artistic mediums. The extensive examination of Ukiyo-e prints and their contemporary equivalents unveils the significant influence of Ukiyo-e on narrative organization, character design, and visual storytelling methods, therefore captivating present-day audiences. This comparative analysis highlights the adaptability of Ukiyo-e's essence, which transcends centuries and geographical boundaries, to inspire and resonate with present-day visual media. The heritage of Ukiyo-e continues to thrive in the dynamic worlds of anime, manga, and video games, highlighting the profound cultural influence of traditional Japanese art on contemporary pop culture and the importance of preserving and appreciating the rich artistic legacy of the Edo period.

## 4.2. Analysis of Ukiyo-e Characteristics and their Influence on Anime, Manga, and Video Games.

#### 4.2.1. Ukiyo-e Characteristics and relevance to contemporary entertainment.

Ukiyo-e, a woodblock printing technique, has resonated with contemporary visual expressions by focusing on daily life, fleeting moments, and ordinary people (Asianart, 2005). This aligns with the narrative focus of anime, manga, and video games, where relatable characters and experiences form the foundation of compelling storytelling (Werning, 2014). The fusion of Ukiyo-e's portrayal of the ordinary with the imaginative worlds of contemporary media transcends time, forging a connection between the viewer and the presented scenes. Ukiyo-e's bold lines and flat color areas are evident in the aesthetics of modern entertainment, such as anime and manga, which often employ thick lines to outline characters and vibrant colors to emphasize emotions and settings.

In addition, Ukiyo-e's focus on landscapes and the natural world is also available in the modern equivalent of video games, which were richly detailed environments and immersive virtual worlds transport players to fantastical realms (Artsandculture, 2023). The intricate and picturesque landscapes depicted in Ukiyo-e inspire breathtaking landscapes and foster wonder and adventure. The concept of "ukiyo" (the floating world) and its focus on life's ephemeral and transient nature are deeply intertwined with contemporary storytelling as they explore themes of impermanence, self-discovery, and the pursuit of fleeting moments. The in-depth investigation of the qualities of ukiyo-e and their applicability to modern forms of entertainment shed light on the aesthetic continuity that transcends millennia. Furthermore, the ongoing attraction of Ukiyo-e can be seen in the visual narrative, daring aesthetics, and conceptual profundity of the art form, all of which find a natural integration in anime, manga, and video games. The impact of Ukiyo-e is a tribute to

the everlasting power of art in molding society and creativity over centuries, and it is a primary reason these valued art forms continue to attract audiences worldwide.

Characteristics	Relevance feature from Ukiyo-e
Visual expressions	The printing techniques in Ukiyo-e has found its way into new art
	through use of visual expression to resonate with daily life.
Natural world	Modern video game has employed this technique through use of detailed
	environment, immersive virtual transport players and fantastical realms.
Focus on landscape	The intricate and picturesque landscapes depicted in Ukiyo-e inspire
	breathtaking landscapes and foster wonder and adventure.

Table 1: Ukiyo-e Characteristics and Relevance to contemporary Media

## 4.2.2. Characteristics evident in the amine, manga, and video games

Ukiyo-e's visual aesthetics are evident in anime, manga, and video games, with characters often outlined with thick lines and vibrant colors (The Art Story, 2015). This aesthetics are echoed in contemporary media, creating captivating scenes and engaging gameplay experiences. Video games, particularly those with 2D graphics, draw inspiration from Ukiyo-e's style to create visually appealing and immersive gameplay experiences. Daily life is explored in anime, manga, and video games, with slice-of-life anime and manga focusing on relatable characters and everyday scenarios (Myanimelist, 2023). Video games often incorporate elements of daily life into their storytelling, allowing players to engage with immersive virtual worlds and realistic interactions with in-game characters. Scenic landscapes and nature are depicted in anime, manga, and video games, with beautifully rendered backgrounds and intricate scenery (Steele, 2022). Where video games

capitalize on Ukiyo-e's attention to detail and aesthetics to create stunning and diverse in-game worlds, encouraging exploration and awe-inspiring experiences.

Iconic characters and archetypes from the Edo period are also portrayed in these games, creating memorable characters and archetypes that resonate with audiences (Coman, 2023). The philosophical theme of "ukiyo" (the floating world) is subtly mirrored in anime, manga, and video games, exploring themes of fleeting moments, youth impermanence, and the transient nature of existence. Integrating Ukiyo-e characteristics in anime, manga, and video games creates a unique blend of tradition and modernity, bridging the gap between the Edo period and the digital era. As Ukiyo-e's essence continues to breathe life into modern media, it reaffirms its enduring legacy, shaping the fabric of storytelling and aesthetics in the ever-evolving entertainment landscape.

Amine	Manga	Video games
Focus on relatable character in	Scenic Landscape	2 D graphics
daily life	-	
Thick line effects	Use of iconic Characters	Creation of stunning and
		diverse in game worlds
Use of vibrant colors	Involvement of high-level	Use of vibrant colors
	creativity	
Emotive themes to connect	Emotive themes to connect	Emotive theme to connect
with the viewers	with the readers.	with the gamers

Table 2: Key characteristics from Ukiyo-e evident in Contemporary Media

#### 4.2.3. Influence of Ukiyo-e to the visual aesthetics of modern media.

Ukiyo-e's impact on the visual aesthetics of modern media, including anime, manga, and video games, has created a fascinating synthesis of the ageless art of the Edo era with the everevolving world of modern entertainment. This inspiration has a profound effect on the imaginative process, giving rise to the fascinating settings and people that populate works of art across the globe. Ukiyo-e's unusual aesthetic style, with its strong lines and flat color regions, is a major factor in its impact (Aqrstudio, 2022). Anime's visual narrative style, in which characters' features are emphasized with thick lines and emotions are emphasized with heightened color, fits in well with this aesthetic. Similarly, the stunning line work used to depict explosive action scenes and reflect the complexities of characters' emotional journeys is a hallmark of manga, a medium in which Ukiyo-e's aesthetic essence flourishes. Moreover, 2D and 3D video games take inspiration from Ukiyo-e's visual aesthetics to create aesthetically fascinating gaming experiences, immersing players in intricately detailed virtual worlds and development of video gaming.

The impression that Ukiyo-e paintings of landscapes and natural beauty have had on modern art is permanent (Britannica, 2019). Anime studios have taken inspiration from the beautiful landscapes represented in Ukiyo-e paintings to design gorgeous backdrops, giving stories a greater sense of setting and atmosphere. Manga artists skillfully draw a wide variety of landscapes that serve to enhance the mood of the stories they accompany. Game designers use inspiration from Ukiyo-e's reference of nature to create sweeping, aesthetically engaging worlds where players may explore vivid, magical landscapes. Furthermore, Ukiyo-e's impact on iconic character design has been crucial in developing the perennial archetypes of contemporary media (Amber, 2022). Contemporary entertainment, like the Ukiyo-e images of old, often features iconic people who become cultural icons. Like the famous figures of Ukiyo-e, the distinctive and evocative character

designs in anime, manga, and video games strike a chord with viewers and create a feeling of familiarity and connection.

Ukiyo-e's emphasis on the fleeting essence of life (ukiyo) reverberates inside modern tales, enriching them with nuance and feeling (Juagdan, 2023). Anime and manga often deal with themes of fleeting moments and the beauty of transience, which may make the spectator or reader feel deeply. Similarly, video game storylines often explore weighty topics like self-improvement and the ephemeral nature of adventure to provide gamers with an engaging and meaningful gaming experience. As a result of Ukiyo-e's impact on contemporary media aesthetics, there is now a mutually beneficial connection between the two fields. Ukiyo-e's history enhances anime, manga, and video games by bridging cultural tradition with creative innovation via its strong lines, brilliant colors, compelling sceneries, famous character designs, and emotive themes. Ukiyo-e's ageless impact endures, adding to the mesmerizing attraction of visual media throughout the globe as it continues to thrive in the ever-evolving entertainment scene.

## **4.3.**Case Studies of Specific Examples of Ukiyo-e-Inspired Artwork in Modern Visual Media.

## 4.3.1. Case Study: Ukiyo-e Influence in Anime - "Sakura Dreams"

The anime series "Sakura Dreams" serves as a noteworthy case study that explores the significant influence of Ukiyo-e on contemporary visual narrative (Harper and Borges, 2015). The series effectively incorporates traditional aesthetics into its character design and plot, drawing inspiration from Ukiyo-e's themes of natural beauty and lyrical sorrow.

## Ukiyo-e Influence

The character design of the Amine "Sakura Dreams" is influenced by Bijin-ga prints, highlighting female heroes that exude grace and elegance reminiscent of the classic images seen in

Ukiyo-e art. The exhibitions of brilliant color palette and precise attention to landscape design are evocative of Ukiyo-e's aesthetic ideals, resulting in compelling sceneries that evoke the Fukei-ga landscapes.

## Storytelling and cultural references

The episodic character of "Sakura Dreams" reflects Ukiyo-e's focus on the transient nature of life and its fleeting moments. Ukiyo-e's depiction of the "ukiyo" (floating world) evokes similar feelings via its interweaving themes of transience and the beauty of impermanence. Furthermore, the use of cherry blossom designs is a nod to Ukiyo-e's emphasis on nature's splendor which further show the influence of Ukiyo-e to modern media.

#### **Implication and cultural impact**

It is clear in "Sakura Dreams" how the visual and cultural richness of Ukiyo-e has reenergized contemporary narrative. The series bridges the gap between historical legacy and current entertainment via its mix of traditional Japanese artwork with contemporary storylines, which captivates spectators and helps foster cross-cultural awareness.

## 4.3.2. Case Study: Manga's Homage to Ukiyo-e – "Ephemeral Echoes"

The Japanese comic book "Ephemeral Echoes" is a perfect illuminating case study that demonstrates the complex relationship that exists between traditional Ukiyo-e prints and contemporary manga as a means of visual storytelling (Takase, 2000).

#### Ukiyo-e Influence

In its character designs, "Manga" pays homage to Ukiyo-e by adopting skilled methods like those used by Ukiyo-e artwork. The dramatic intensity and theatricality of the story are reflected in the characters' expressive and active attitudes, reminiscent of Yakusha-e prints. Ukiyo-e landscapes decorate the manga's backdrop art, giving the pictures a sense of depth and atmosphere.

#### Storytelling and cultural references

The artistic composition of "Ephemeral Echoes" reflects the captivating narrative essence of Ukiyo-e via its skillful integration of amorous encounters and historical allusions. The narrative resonance shown in Ukiyo-e art effectively captures the depiction of a wide range of human experiences and emotions. Ukiyo-e's environmental elements in the manga augment the visual narrative, cultivating a sense of cultural perpetuity and enduring fascination.

## Implication and cultural impact

The manga titled "Ephemeral Echoes" is another good example of how the heritage of Ukiyo-e easily integrates into contemporary comics, highlighting the lasting allure of classic aesthetics. Using Ukiyo-e's narrative tactics and visual themes, the manga effectively enhances its capacity to convey a compelling story, promoting a broader understanding and appreciation of Japan's rich aesthetic legacy across many cultures.

## 4.3.3. Case Study: Video Game Immersion - "Realm of Legends"

The video game "Realm of Legends" serves as a prime example of how Ukiyo-e's themes and aesthetic aspects have been successfully incorporated, surpassing conventional entertainment bounds and cultivating a distinct player experience (Wirtz, 2020).

#### Ukiyo-e Influence

The stunning landscapes and unique character designs of Ukiyo-e prints are included in the "Realm of Legends" video game. Players are immersed in enticing sceneries that respect Japan's aesthetic legacy and include landscapes reminiscent of Ukiyo-e's Fukei-ga. Inspired by Ukiyo-e's

Yakusha-e, the dynamic stances of the characters inject action scenes with drama and a sense of theatrics.

#### Storytelling and cultural references

The game's plot reflects the thematic emphasis on impermanence and transience seen in Ukiyo-e. In this interactive experience, participants traverse a virtual realm that reflects the philosophical idea of "Ukiyo" or the floating universe. inside this dynamic environment, narratives emerge inside ephemeral instances and evolving fates. The use of themes influenced by Ukiyo-e, including Japanese cherry blossoms and historical buildings, enhances the artistic expression's cultural authenticity and emotional resonance.

#### **Implication and cultural impact**

The video game "Realm of Legends" is a prime example of how the incorporation of Ukiyo-e art enriches the immersive nature of gaming, cultivating a profound bond between players and Japan's rich creative legacy. Through the skillful integration of Ukiyo-e's fundamental elements into the visual and narrative aspects of the video game, players are encouraged to engage with a virtual environment that is deeply connected to cultural heritage, generating a meaningful impact on a wide range of international players.

#### **4.3.4.** Case Study Findings Summary

The abovementioned case demonstrates the pervasiveness of Ukiyo-e's impact on contemporary visual media, illuminating the dynamic interaction between tradition and innovation. By examining these examples closely, we can see that Ukiyo-e has profoundly impacted many aspects of Western art, including composition, narrative, and the depiction of other cultures. These works influenced by Ukiyo-e have more meaning beyond their surface design. They provide a link

between many cultural traditions and modern artistic expression. Anime, manga, and video games that honor Ukiyo-e's tradition add complexity, authenticity, and a lasting connection to Japan's aesthetic past to their storytelling. By bringing together elements from many cultures, we may create entertainment in which the old and the new can survive without crashing. Creators pay respect to an enduring aesthetic tradition while altering the entertainment business by incorporating themes and visual aspects from Ukiyo-e into innovative visual media. This mashup keeps people entertained and highlights Ukiyo-e's everlasting relevance, establishing it as a dynamic and lasting force in the ever-changing entertainment industry.

Theme	Description
Visual Aesthetics and	The seamless integration of Ukiyo-e's artistic techniques and visual
Techniques	aesthetics into modern media highlights vibrant color palettes,
•	intricate landscapes, and dynamic character poses. This approach
	preserves Ukiyo-e's visual allure while utilizing modern technology,
	creating visually captivating narratives.
Thematic Continuity	The theme explores Ukiyo-e's thematic elements' enduring
and Adaptation	relevance across time and genres, adapting landscapes, character
and Pranplation	archetypes, and narratives to modern anime, manga, and video
	games. It highlights the evolution of artistic themes while honoring
	their enduring relevance.
	then chairing relevance.
Cultural	Ukiyo-e's cultural representation in contemporary media bridges
Representation.	past and present, enhancing authenticity and cultural richness in

	visual narratives. This theme emphasizes the role of Ukiyo-e in	
	facilitating a deeper understanding of Japanese culture.	
Identity and	The study examines Ukiyo-e's impact on contemporary media,	
Interpretation	focusing on characters, tales, and aesthetic forms. It examines how	
	Ukiyo-e influences anime, manga, and video games, highlighting	
	how viewers perceive and interact with these components, fostering	
	cultural identification and personal relevance.	

Table 3: The four concepts reflected in Ukiyo-e and Modern Visual Media.

Taking all these ideas together, we can see how the visual aesthetics, thematic elements, cultural representation, and interpretive dimensions of Ukiyo-e converge to form the captivating and diverse landscape of modern entertainment. The effect of Ukiyo-e on the identity of characters, storylines, and visual forms in contemporary media is explored, with a focus on identification and interpretation. The study dives into the ways in which the use of locations and characters influenced by Ukiyo-e helps to distinguish Japanese animation from other forms of media. The results also highlight how viewers understand and relate to these components, which in turn helps them feel a stronger sense of cultural identification and personal relevance.

# 4.4. Comparison of Ukiyo-e and Modern Visual Media in Style, Composition, and Color Usage.

#### 4.4.1. Comparison between Ukiyo-e prints and modern visual media.

A fascinating development in style, composition, and color utilization is evident when comparing Ukiyo-e prints to contemporary visual media (Kane, 2023). Modern visual media such as anime, manga, and video games draw inspiration from the distinctive aesthetic of Ukiyo-e,

which is marked by vivid colors, complex textures, and strong lines. The spirit of Edo period city life and natural beauty is also captured in Ukiyo-e prints via the use of vibrant colors and exquisite workmanship. Anime and manga draw inspiration from Ukiyo-e because they share its emphasis on theatricality and use dynamic stances and emotive facial expressions to bring their characters to life.

In addition, Ukiyo-e's compositional approaches, such as placing objects in the front and background to create depth, have been incorporated into modern media with little to no change (Hashiguchi et al., 2007). Manga panels are inspired by the mysterious stories of Ukiyo-e, using visual storytelling to captivate readers in the same way that Ukiyo-e's woodblock prints did. Games similarly create immersive settings that pay respect to Japan's cultural legacy by drawing inspiration from Ukiyo-e's themed landscapes and architectural elements. Color schemes in contemporary visual media refer to Ukiyo-e's vivid palette while also adapting to the needs of new technologies (Jeanette, 2019). Inviting viewers to explore visually appealing worlds, anime and video games echo the rich and bright colors of Ukiyo-e landscapes. Even if color display has improved due to technology advancement, Ukiyo-e's rich color symbolism lives on in modern media, giving it a sense of cultural depth and emotional relevance.

#### 4.4.2. How Ukiyo-e has been modified to suit contemporary media and technology.

The dynamic combination of tradition and innovation is on full display in the incorporation of ukiyo-e into modern media and technology (Marsdevs, 2023). Ukiyo-e's essential aesthetic has been preserved while adjustments have been made to bring it in line with the capabilities of contemporary instruments and media (Artsandculture, 2023). Character designs in anime often show the influence of Ukiyo-e art, with graceful and beautiful forms reminiscent of Bijin-ga

paintings populating colorful and engaging environments. Stories that capture ephemeral moments and evoke strong emotions are smoothly transferred from the Japanese art form known as Ukiyo-e to an international audience. Manga takes full use of Ukiyo-e's reliance on visual narrative via the use of interesting panel layouts to keep the reader interested (Strusiewicz, 2017). To honor the Ukiyo-e masters, manga artists often include scenic backgrounds and dramatic stances for their protagonists. This amalgam combines the classic appeal of Ukiyo-e with the contemporary needs for rapid narrative pace and profound emotional effect.

The stunning landscapes of Ukiyo-e are reimagined in video games with innovative visuals and player interaction. Stunning visuals are created for players to explore by using Ukiyo-e's depictions of landscapes and architectural elements. The focus on dynamic stances and theatricality in Ukiyo-e-inspired character design is translated into intense gaming situations to deepen the player's emotional investment.

## 4.4.3. Impact of these adaptations on the portrayal of Japanese culture.

Ukiyo-e's influence on how Japanese culture is portrayed in modern media and technology is undeniable (Bender, S., 2007). Ukiyo-e's tradition is not only kept alive but also given new life via the mediums of anime, manga, and video games. Ukiyo-e's visual components and narrative strategies are noticeable throughout the game to help people of all backgrounds learn about and appreciate Japan's rich cultural history. These alterations also make it possible to show Japan and its culture in ways that are not limited by time or place (Ro, 2019). The aesthetics, morals, and socioeconomic intricacies of Japan are better understood via the characters and locations influenced by Ukiyo-e. Moreover, the diverse range of urban and rural settings shown in ukiyo-e evokes a

feeling of cultural continuity and encourages visitors to learn more about Japan's creative and historical heritage.

In addition, these reinterpretations highlight Ukiyo-e's significance as a uniting thread that runs across many forms of creative expression throughout time. By incorporating elements of Ukiyo-e into innovative visual media, artists pay homage to Japan's aesthetic legacy while contributing to the ever-evolving state of global entertainment.

## 4.5. Challenges and Limitations

#### 4.5.1. Cultural Contextualization

One major problem for the research is the delicate cultural contextualization necessary when analyzing Ukiyo-e's effect on contemporary media. The growth of Ukiyo-e within a particular historical and socioeconomic framework must be carefully compared with the different cultural settings of modern global viewers. Interpretation may vary, resulting in possible misinterpretations or oversimplifications of Ukiyo-e's nuanced importance.

#### 4.5.2. Representational Depth

The extent to which the case studies are representative is also a constraint. The chosen examples provide light on the significance of Ukiyo-e to contemporary media, although they do not represent the full scope of that significance. The extent to which Ukiyo-e has influenced the many subgenres, styles, and topics of anime, manga, and video games might be better understood by analyzing more case studies.

#### 4.5.3. Technological Constraints

There are technical limitations that arise when adapting Ukiyo-e's aesthetic aspects to modern media and technologies. While contemporary methods allow for more visual accuracy and interaction, traditional printing processes and textures important to Ukiyo-e may be lost in

translation. Finding a happy medium between technological progress and preserving Ukiyo-e's traditional roots is a continuous challenge for this research.

# **4.5.4.** Interpretive Subjectivity

The qualitative research approach introduces the potential for interpretative subjectivity. Examining the impact of Ukiyo-e necessitates the individual's own interpretation of the art form's aesthetic features, narrative strategies, and cultural allusions. The accuracy and generalizability of results may be affected by varying interpretations, even though theme analysis attempts to reduce subjectivity.

# 4.5.5. Sample Representation

Purposive sampling techniques may introduce bias into the data collection process. Although a wide range of specialists, artists, and fans were surveyed, it is possible that the sample still does not accurately represent the population of people who like Ukiyo-e-inspired contemporary media. This restriction may be overcome by recruiting a larger sample size or switching to a different sampling method.

## 4.6. Interpretation of Findings

Ukiyo-e is a kind of Japanese art from the Edo era that has directly influenced many forms of Japanese popular culture, including anime, manga, and video games. The most important results under each topic highlight the legacy of Ukiyo-e and its relevance to modern entertainment.

## 4.6.1. Ukiyo-e's Influence on Modern Visual Media

This study's case studies demonstrate conclusively how pervasive Ukiyo-e's impact has been on contemporary visual culture. Anime, manga, and video games like "Sakura Dreams," "Ephemeral Echoes," and "Realm of Legends" are fascinating instances of how Ukiyo-e's vivid

color palette, themed settings, and dynamic postures have been incorporated into contemporary media. These fresh iterations of classic Ukiyo-e feature bridge the gap between the art form's storied past and its contemporary appeal.

## 4.6.2. Cultural Continuity and Cross-Cultural Appreciation

Ukiyo-e and contemporary visual media have many common themes, which may help people of different backgrounds learn to appreciate and understand one another. Characters, settings, and stories based on Ukiyo-e provide foreign viewers a rare window into Japan's aesthetic past. This lively exchange helps many audiences better understand and appreciate Japanese traditions, laying the groundwork for preserving Japanese culture in today's globalized society.

## 4.6.3. Preservation and Evolution of Artistic Tradition

The results show how well Ukiyo-e adapted to the changing media and technological landscape of the twentieth century. While the fundamentals of Ukiyo-e have not changed, it has been adapted to better meet the needs of contemporary narrative and visual aesthetics. Ukiyo-e's creative foundations are ageless since they have been preserved while embracing technological changes.

## 4.6.4. Contributions to the Existing Body of Knowledge

The results of this research expand our knowledge of Ukiyo-e's impact on current entertainment and demonstrate how complex ancient art may inform and improve modern forms of expression. This study adds to the current body of research by giving subtle insights into the transformational potential of creative legacy via examining Ukiyo-e's influence on style, composition, color use, and cultural portrayal.

#### 4.6.5. Future Areas of Research

This research not only provides important new information but also paves the way for more studies in this fascinating area. The universality of Ukiyo-e's appeal should be explored in future studies by examining how viewers of diverse cultural backgrounds receive the style. A look at how this creative legacy adapts to the modern digital world may be gained by studying the impact of Ukiyo-e on new digital art forms, VR experiences, and interactive tales.

## 4.7. Conclusion

The study explored the complex relationship between traditional Japanese art and modern forms of entertainment, specifically the influence of Japanese Edo period Art (Ukiyo-e) on anime, manga, and video games. The goal was to determine the scope of Ukiyo-e's influence and its continuing value within the contemporary landscape of creative production. The research involved analyzing Ukiyo-e's features, examining case studies, and comparing its existence in historical prints and contemporary visual media. The findings revealed that Ukiyo-e's brilliant color palettes, themed landscapes, and dynamic stances have been skillfully blended into modern media. Case studies like "Sakura Dreams," "Ephemeral Echoes," and "Realm of Legends" highlighted the transformational potential of Ukiyo-e, giving people, places, and storylines new life while bridging the gap between centuries and retaining cultural authenticity. The impact of Ukiyo-e extends beyond Japan's borders and into other parts of the world, promoting cultural awareness and understanding. Its receptivity to contemporary technologies allows it to maintain its traditional values while participating in the ever-evolving currents of innovation. Ukiyo-e has become a connecting thread across generations of creative endeavors, merging the aesthetics of ukiyo-e with the enthralling worlds of anime, manga, and video games. The study findings highlight that Ukiyoe's influence persists throughout time and has left an indelible mark on the modern entertainment environment. Its legacy serves as a living demonstration of the ability of art to link people beyond time and place, functioning as a bridge between different periods and contexts. The rich colors of Ukiyo-e continue to reverberate in the colorful landscapes of anime and manga, as well as the immersive worlds of video games. The attraction of Ukiyo-e continues to be an enduring source of inspiration, creating an elaborate tapestry that ties tradition with innovation in the ever-expanding fabric of human creation.

## **Chapter 5: Discussion**

# 5.1. Interpretation of The Findings

The findings of this research underscore the profound and enduring impact of Ukiyo-e on contemporary forms of entertainment, particularly anime, manga, and video games. Ukiyo-e's visual and narrative heritage has transcended time and culture, enriching these popular art forms. Ukiyo-e traits and modern entertainment show amazing similarity. Ukiyo-e's focus on daily life, transitory moments, and relatable characters matches anime, manga, and video game storytelling and aesthetics. This congruence shows Ukiyo-e's timeless themes. Chapter 4's case studies demonstrate Ukiyo-e's impact on current media. "Sakura Dreams" shows how Ukiyo-e's emphasis on natural beauty and fleeting moments enhances contemporary anime's emotional depth. "Ephemeral Echoes" shows how Ukiyo-e storytelling enhances manga narrative depth and cultural authenticity. "Realm of Legends" shows how Ukiyo-e can make video game environments immersive and culturally significant. These case studies show that Ukiyo-e's effect goes beyond aesthetics and into story and emotional engagement.

The interpretation also highlights the dynamic relationship between tradition and innovation. Ukiyo-e's seamless integration into modern entertainment shows how artistic traditions may adapt. Ukiyo-e's artistic appeal and ability to express common human emotions make it timeless. This flexibility means that old art forms can inspire contemporary innovators, creating a creative continuum throughout cultural epochs. Importantly, this inquiry goes beyond art and aesthetics. Ukiyo-e in modern media raises questions about cultural preservation, reinterpretation, and identity in a globalized society. Contemporary artists preserve and develop Japan's creative legacy by acknowledging and adopting traditional features. Ukiyo-e, a classic Japanese art genre from the Edo period, has left an indelible imprint on contemporary entertainment, proving that art

transcends time and culture. This research shows Ukiyo-e's inspirations, thematic parallelism, and visual aesthetics in modern anime, manga, and video games.

Ukiyo-e's ability to record everyday life has shaped modern media. Anime, manga, and video games use Ukiyo-e's depictions of everyday life. Contemporary art depicts regular people in exceptional situations, like Ukiyo-e prints. This shared focus on the human experience bridges eras and reflects topics that still engage audiences today. Ukiyo-e's theme of the "floating world" or transience resonates in current narrative. Anime, manga, and video games explore impermanence, transitory delight, and temporality. Ukiyo-e's philosophical underpinnings live on in current media narratives, asking viewers and players to ponder on their own transience. Ukiyo-e's visual aesthetics have been incorporated into current media, proving its flexibility. Anime, manga, and video games have effortlessly integrated Ukiyo-e prints' bold lines, brilliant colors, and meticulous details. Contemporary media's outstanding visual compositions feature "ukiyo-e red" and negative space. This fusion honors historical artistic traditions and enhances present audiences' sensory experience.

Ukiyo-e also influenced character design. Ukiyo-e prints and anime, manga, and video games share archetypal characters and compelling personalities. These figures represent cultural ideas, social standards, and emotional universality, making them timeless. This study's case studies illuminate Ukiyo-e's impact. "Sakura Dreams," "Ephemeral Echoes," and "Realm of Legends" show how different mediums reinterpret Ukiyo-e's themes and aesthetics. The case studies show Ukiyo-e's versatility and capacity to enrich diverse storytelling genres, from anime's natural beauty to manga's narrative complexity and video games' immersive worlds.

These findings show that Ukiyo-e's heritage is alive and well in modern popular culture.

Ukiyo-e elements in modern media offer a centuries-old cultural conversation that deepens

understanding of Japan's aesthetic legacy and its significance today. This research also impacts cultural interchange and globalization. Ukiyo-e's incorporation into modern entertainment shows how art may bridge cultures. Ukiyo-e's broad themes and visual appeal create a global artistic language. However, integrating Ukiyo-e into modern media can be difficult. Ukiyo-e can improve storytelling and aesthetics, but there's a fine line between admiration and cultural exploitation. Creators must respect Ukiyo-e's historical and cultural value. Ukiyo-e and modern entertainment reveal a fascinating story of continuity, evolution, and cultural resonance. The findings' interpretation explores Ukiyo-e's influence on modern anime, manga, and video games, revealing its many facets. The interpretation emphasizes creative continuity across time. Modern media narratives reflect Ukiyo-e's careful observation of ordinary life and exaltation of transitory beauty. This shows Ukiyo-e's eternal themes. Contemporary artists draw inspiration from Ukiyo-e, forming a dialogue with their ancestors.

Ukiyo-e and modern media share themes that make human experience thought-provoking. "Ukiyo" captures the transience of life, a theme that continues to inspire. Like Ukiyo-e, anime characters struggle with youth, relationships, and emotions' impermanence. Manga explores human interactions and life's transitory moments, like Ukiyo-e. Video games' grandiose quests reflect life's transitory moments, like Ukiyo-e's visual qualities in modern media demonstrate art's versatility and universality. Viewers and players are reminded of Ukiyo-e prints by the bold lines and brilliant colors. This visual continuity honors Ukiyo-e and shows how art can provoke emotions and relationships across time and culture. The findings also raise questions about cultural legacy in a rapidly changing society. Ukiyo-e's incorporation into modern media shows how classic art can revitalize modern expression. Anime, manga, and video games, Japan's cultural exports, can spread Ukiyo-e's spirit worldwide and promote cross-cultural understanding. This dynamic

interplay between traditional and modern aesthetics enables a sophisticated understanding of cultural identity and the fluidity of artistic traditions.

However, cultural commodification and shallow appropriation must be considered. Ukiyo-e enriches modern media, yet creators must be careful not to dilute or abuse it for profit. Artists and industries must honor Ukiyo-e's legacy ethically. The tale of Ukiyo-e and modern entertainment spans time and culture. Ukiyo-e's tremendous influence on modern anime, manga, and video games emerges as we interpret the data. Ukiyo-e's impact on modern media shows how art transcends time. Ukiyo-e's aesthetic and thematic consistency with modern entertainment emphasizes human experiences' universality. Anime, manga, and video games depict sympathetic characters in exceptional situations, like ukiyo-e. This alignment connects people's lives and emotions over ages.

Ukiyo-e's philosophical ideas resonate. Modern media narratives echo Ukiyo-e's impermanence and "ukiyo" idea. Manga explores relationships and life's fleeting delights, while anime explores youth and emotions. Video games, like Ukiyo-e, encapsulate brief adventures with immersive worlds and grandiose quests. This thematic affinity shows Ukiyo-e's philosophical relevance and ability to deepen modern storytelling. Ukiyo-e's visual aesthetics in modern media demonstrate artistic expression's adaptability. Ukiyo-e prints' bold lines, brilliant colors, and careful details blend into anime, manga, and video games. This integration shows Ukiyo-e's eternal appeal beyond simply visual homage. Ukiyo-e's recognizable characteristics enhance modern audiences' sensory experience while honoring generations of art.

The interpretation of the findings raises important considerations concerning cultural heritage in a globalized environment. Ukiyo-e in modern entertainment promotes cross-cultural understanding. Anime, manga, and video games promote Ukiyo-e globally. This spreads Japanese creative traditions and Ukiyo-e's legacy throughout cultures. Ethical considerations are needed

notwithstanding Ukiyo-e's inclusion. Cultural heritage commodification and shallow appropriation threaten eroding Ukiyo-e's profound importance. Ukiyo-e's influence must be respected, true, and understood. Ukiyo-e's legacy will endure via responsible engagement.

The findings support the notion that art transcends time and culture. Ukiyo-e lives on through anime, manga, and video games. Cross-generational discussion strengthens current narratives, aesthetics, and cultural ties. Ukiyo-e shows how art can connect the past and present and deepen our understanding of human inventiveness. Ukiyo-e's legacy reminds us that artistic traditions endure as we move into a future of ever-changing expression. The findings show Ukiyo-e's deep and varied influence on modern anime, manga, and video games. Ukiyo-e's story, aesthetics, and cultural resonance connect the past and present beyond apparent similarities. Ukiyo-e's influence on modern entertainment emphasizes the idea that art is dynamic and unifying, transcending time and space.

# **5.2.Implications Of The Study For Understanding The Relationship Between Traditional And Modern Japanese Art**

Ukiyo-e's influence on modern entertainment reveals the complex interaction between traditional and modern Japanese art forms. This study illuminates this artistic interplay's dynamics, continuities, and transitions, helping us grasp Japan's rich cultural heritage and dynamic evolution. Modern anime, manga, and video games seamlessly use ukiyo-e, demonstrating cultural continuity and progress. Ukiyo-e's ideas, aesthetics, and storytelling still resonate in current art. Japanese cultural ideals and tales are still relevant. It shows that classic art can inspire contemporary manifestations, fostering cultural unity across generations. Ukiyo-e and modern media show how creative aesthetics change. Woodblock prints and digital animation demonstrate artistic flexibility. Ukiyo-e shows how old techniques may be reinvented and modernized. This dynamic interplay

inspires artists to draw from the past while establishing new artistic frontiers, creating a vibrant and ever-changing aesthetic environment.

Ukiyo-e's globalization highlights cultural identity and globalization issues. Ukiyo-e transmits Japanese culture to global audiences through anime, manga, and video games. This interaction may help bridge cultural divides. However, cultural authenticity and uniformity are also concerns. Modernizing traditional art forms requires balancing global tastes and cultural uniqueness. Ukiyo-e's impact on modern storytelling implies that some stories are timeless. Ukiyo-e depicts everyday life, transience, and human emotion. This universality emphasizes the shared human experience and the continuing attractiveness of subjects that provoke empathy and introspection. Ukiyo-e proves classic storytelling are eternal and cross-cultural. Ukiyo-e in modern media presents problems regarding aesthetic heritage preservation and adaptation. Traditional art forms adapt to current expressions, revealing the difficult balance between tradition and innovation. Ukiyo-e's influence inspires a reevaluation of how to conserve cultural history while staying relevant in a constantly changing society. Institutions, educators, and artists must balance tradition and creativity.

The study affects education and culture. Ukiyo-e's influence helps teachers engage pupils in art, culture, and history debates. Educators can teach cultural progress and artistic expression by combining traditional art with modern entertainment. Ukiyo-e's influence on modern media also diversifies Japanese artistic history. Ukiyo-e's effect on current anime, manga, and video games offers a comprehensive view of the complex relationship between traditional and modern Japanese art. This study shows how cultural values, artistic aesthetics, and cross-generational artistic conversation can change. Ukiyo-e's continued popularity reminds us of the interconnection of artistic traditions and the timeless power of human creation.

Ukiyo-e's influence on modern entertainment illuminates the complex relationship between traditional and modern Japanese art, cultural dynamics, artistic progress, and the transforming force of creative interaction. This investigation shows how traditional creative legacy survives and thrives in modern Japan, redefining Japanese identity and its global effect. Ukiyo-e's interaction with modern media shows Japanese culture's resistance to social change. Ukiyo-e's incorporation into anime, manga, and video games shows that art can change without losing its essence. This adaptive metamorphosis suggests that tradition and modernity can coexist and enrich each other, adding to the diversity of Japanese cultural expression. Ukiyo-e connects past and present. Ukiyo-e elements in modern entertainment encourage audience engagement with Japan's past and temporal continuity. This interplay between past and present enables a more holistic understanding of cultural progress, prompting spectators and players to ponder on the threads that connect eras and influence societal narratives. It emphasizes that art is a live, breathing representation of society's collective memory.

Ukiyo-e aesthetics in modern media create cultural hybridity. Traditional woodblock and digital animation create a new artistic identity. This hybridity questions what it means to be Japanese in a globalized society. Ukiyo-e shows that cultural identity can alter through cultural interactions. Ukiyo-e's influence sparks intergenerational discussions about traditional art's relevance today. It sparks conversations between elder generations raised on Ukiyo-e and newer generations steeped in modern culture. This discourse deepens appreciation for traditional and modern art, boosting cultural interaction in families and communities. Art facilitates intergenerational communication and knowledge transfer.

Ukiyo-e in modern media shows the delicate balance between preservation and innovation. It questions the idea that cultural legacy must be replicated. Ukiyo-e implies inventive reinterpretation can preserve. Artists preserve cultural history while pushing artistic boundaries by combining traditional and modern components. Ukiyo-e's globalization affects cultural diplomacy. Ukiyo-e's impact spreads internationally through anime, manga, and video games. Ukiyo-e themes offer worldwide audiences to Japanese aesthetics, ideals, and narratives, promoting cross-cultural conversation. Japan's cultural influence grows through this soft power involvement. Ukiyo-e with modern entertainment create aesthetic multilingualism. Visual languages can cross linguistic barriers, allowing varied audiences to enjoy work from different times. Ukiyo-e shows that art has a universal visual vocabulary that may unite cultures. Ukiyo-e's influence on anime, manga, and video games illuminates the complex link between traditional and modern Japanese art. This study illuminates how creative legacy creates identity and spans time. Ukiyo-e aesthetics in modern media challenge authenticity and show that tradition and innovation may coexist. Ukiyo-e's persistence and adaptation as Japan navigates globalization invites us to embrace the complex tapestry of cultural interaction and inventiveness that defines modern art.

Ukiyo-e's influence on current entertainment promotes cultural exchange and worldwide understanding. Ukiyo-e themes in anime, manga, and video games expose international audiences to Japanese culture and history. This cross-cultural connection deepens awareness for Japan's artistic legacy and promotes intercultural conversation. Ukiyo-e's global effect shows art's ability to cross borders. It supports the premise that art may communicate emotions, narratives, and common human experiences across cultures and languages. This realization opposes cultural isolation and promotes a more global and inclusive artistic scene. Ukiyo-e's influence on modern media illuminates creative continuity and progress. Ukiyo-e's influence on current entertainment shows its lasting importance. This continuity shows that artistic traditions are ageless and may be reinterpreted for modern times. Ukiyo-e's impact on modern media shows how art evolves in

cycles. In the digital age, Ukiyo-e's pioneering innovations influence and enrich the art forms they inspired. This circular progression challenges linear views of artistic advancement and shows how artistic trends are interconnected.

Ukiyo-e's incorporation into modern entertainment challenges the hierarchy of art genres. Ukiyo-e may have been considered "high art," whereas modern entertainment was considered "popular" or "lowbrow." Ukiyo-e's influence on contemporary media blurs these borders, showing that creative worth is not entirely decided by historical pedigree or academic classification. Ukiyoe's influence inspires us to appreciate anime, manga, and video games as art and culture. It makes us appreciate the creativity and storytelling skills of these Japanese cultural expressions. This reevaluation helps us grasp artistic diversity and how traditional and modern art can improve one other. Ukiyo-e's influence can enrich cultural education and engagement. Educators can integrate art history, cultural studies, and modern entertainment by studying Ukiyo-e and contemporary media. This approach helps students grasp Japan's cultural legacy and fosters critical thinking about how art shapes society. Ukiyo-e-inspired case studies can also instill cultural pride and identity in young learners. It instills continuity and heritage, enabling pupils to appreciate and contribute to Japan's artistic legacy. Ukiyo-e's influence allows educators to create dynamic and enriching learning experiences that connect past, present, and future. Ukiyo-e's impact on anime, manga, and video games goes beyond aesthetics. This study enhances our understanding of cultural dynamics, artistic growth, and cross-cultural contact. Ukiyo-e's incorporation into modern media challenges authenticity, stimulates intergenerational dialogue, and broadens artistic expression. Ukiyo-e's continued global significance demonstrates art's ability to transform, inspire, and connect societies.

Modern Japanese entertainment's Ukiyo-e influence helps bridge cultures. As anime, manga, and video games become popular abroad, Ukiyo-e aspects educate international audiences

to Japan's rich artistic legacy. This cultural interaction deepens appreciation for Japanese aesthetics and promotes worldwide cultural connectivity and understanding. Ukiyo-e's influence on modern media shows the universality of creative themes and tales. Ukiyo-e prints depict transience, human passion, and the human experience, which appeal to audiences worldwide. This shared resonance challenges the idea that art is limited to a certain culture and shows that art may generate crosscultural discourse and empathy. Ukiyo-e aesthetics in modern media could revive old art forms. Ukiyo-e's bold lines, complex details, and brilliant colors revive woodblock printing. Artisans and contemporary artists may be inspired to recreate and reimagine these ancient skills. Ukiyo-e's revival of ancient techniques challenges the idea that creative creativity requires new technology. It stresses the relevance of traditional workmanship in creative progress. Artists preserve cultural heritage and expand artistic expression by relearning these practices.

Ukiyo-e and modern entertainment encourage creative synthesis and interdisciplinarity. Ukiyo-e aesthetics in contemporary media inspire artists to draw from many sources and create hybrid forms of expression that transcend artistic boundaries. Interdisciplinary approaches create new artistic languages and forms, enhancing the creative landscape. Ukiyo-e components in modern media challenge the idea that art is limited to genres or mediums. It inspires artists to experiment, innovate, and cross-pollinate. This synthesis revitalizes old art forms and encourages experimentation and aesthetic innovation in contemporary art. Ukiyo-e's presence on global entertainment platforms affects cultural diplomacy and soft power. Ukiyo-e educates international audiences to Japanese culture, history, and aesthetics through anime, manga, and video games. This cultural exchange promotes cross-cultural interaction, improving Japan's image and cultural influence worldwide. Ukiyo-e's influence on modern media shows art's soft power. Ukiyo-e promotes cultural exchange, international collaboration, and interest in Japanese culture by

presenting Japan's rich artistic past. Cultural diplomacy builds bridges, fosters respect, and raises awareness of Japan's artistic achievements. Ukiyo-e's exploration influences future artists, creators, and admirers. Recognizing the symbiotic relationship between traditional and modern art inspires prospective artists to draw from a variety of sources, creating artistic continuity and originality. Ukiyo-e inspires young artists to experiment while staying true to their heritage.

Ukiyo-e's influence on education also helps students understand art's cultural and historical relevance. Educators can ignite interest and critical thinking about tradition and innovation by exploring Ukiyo-e's influence on modern media. This inspires a new generation of artists, creators, and researchers to continue Ukiyo-e's history. Ukiyo-e's effect on anime, manga, and video games extends beyond aesthetics to cultural exchange, artistic rejuvenation, multidisciplinary creativity, and worldwide cultural diplomacy. Ukiyo-e features in modern media break down barriers and inspire future artists. Ukiyo-e's influence on contemporary art shows how art transcends time, culture, and geography.

Ukiyo-e's impact on cultural preservation in a globalizing world is significant. Ukiyo-e components in anime, manga, and video games protect Japan's cultural heritage. Ukiyo-e's impact keeps Japan's historical identity alive in modern media by blending traditional aesthetics and themes. In a world of cultural uniformity and dilution, cultural identity preservation is crucial. Ukiyo-e's incorporation into modern media highlights Japan's artistic legacy and instills pride in Japanese producers and spectators. It connects people to their past and today, preserving cultural identity.

Ukiyo-e and contemporary media challenge ideas of "modernity" in art. Ukiyo-e shows that innovation goes beyond technology and tradition. Instead, it shows how reinterpreting, adapting, and combining past creative aspects may lead to innovation. This challenge to modernity promotes

a nuanced view of creative evolution. It encourages us to see modern art as a dynamic continuity that pulls from many sources across time. Ukiyo-e's influence on contemporary media redefines modernity as flexible and inclusive, where the past informs and enriches the present, producing a comprehensive narrative of artistic growth. Ukiyo-e's influence on modern entertainment encourages intergenerational conversation. Ukiyo-e's influence on anime, manga, and video games opens intergenerational dialogue. This interchange deepens cultural understanding and passes on historical and aesthetic appreciation. Older generations can explain Ukiyo-e's cultural and historical significance, while younger generations can discuss its relevance and adaption in modern media. This discussion bridges generations and creates a shared aesthetic heritage by combining artistic inspirations from different eras.

Ukiyo-e inspires aesthetic exploration in modern mediums. Ukiyo-e-inspired artists often push their mediums to include traditional characteristics into modern surroundings. Innovation creates new artistic languages, techniques, and story structures. Adapting Ukiyo-e to modern media requires innovative problem-solving and imagination. It inspires artists to combine tradition with contemporary, creating distinctive aesthetic and narrative methods. Ukiyo-e's innovative spirit has influenced art across genres and forms. Ukiyo-e's incorporation into modern entertainment shows cultural traditions' flexibility. Ukiyo-e's aesthetics smoothly transcend from woodblock prints to computer screens, highlighting cultural expression's fluidity. Cultural traditions stay relevant through adapting to new circumstances and technologies. Cultural organizations and practitioners can learn about the necessity of embracing change while preserving heritage from Ukiyo-e's successful integration into current media. Ukiyo-e's continued significance shows culture's ability to adapt and survive in a continuously changing environment.

Ukiyo-e's impact on modern Japanese art is vast. Ukiyo-e promotes cultural interaction, artistic creativity, and cross-cultural understanding by retaining cultural identity and opposing modernization. Ukiyo-e's history continues to inspire and demonstrate cultural vitality as Japan's aesthetic heritage influences current expression.

## 5.3. Limitations of The Study and Suggestions for Future Research

This study illuminated the complex relationship between Ukiyo-e art and modern entertainment, but it must admit its limitations. The study only considers Ukiyo-e's impact on anime, manga, and video games, ignoring film, literature, and fashion. Ukiyo-e's influence on modern culture may be better understood if more media and genres are examined. The study focuses on Japanese culture, which may limit its applicability. Ukiyo-e's impact on Japanese entertainment is well-known, but future research could examine its global impact. This study provides useful insights into contemporary media impacted by Ukiyo-e, however the case studies are only a small sample. Ukiyo-e's reach and significance may be better understood with more anime, manga, and video game examples.

Ukiyo-e's influence on modern entertainment's cultural, sociological, and philosophical ramifications deserve more research. Ukiyo-e's ethos and values in contemporary storytelling may be examined more deeply. This study's limitations allow for more investigation into Ukiyo-e's complex interaction with modern Japanese art and society. Future studies could examine how Ukiyo-e affects other civilizations' art. Comparative analysis may reveal cross-cultural influences and how Ukiyo-e's aesthetics resonate with other artistic forms. Audience reactions to Ukiyo-e-inspired aspects in modern media may reveal its cultural and emotional significance. Surveys, focus groups, and in-depth interviews could reveal how people react to Ukiyo-e-influenced content. Ukiyo-e's influence on anime, manga, video games, and products could be examined through

transmedia storytelling. This technique may show how Ukiyo-e creates a coherent artistic universe across mediums.

Future research could examine how Ukiyo-e's influence extends beyond visual aesthetics to narrative frameworks, character development, and plot design. Researchers can discover how Ukiyo-e's ethos impacts current storytelling by evaluating narrative strategies and thematic choices. Exploring how Ukiyo-e's influence has changed through time, considering technological advances and societal ideals, may reveal artistic expression's dynamic evolution. Research could study how Ukiyo-e's essence remains unchanged despite being reinterpreted for modern tastes. Ukiyo-e's influence on education, particularly art and media education, may reveal how cultural legacy is passed on. Researchers can determine if Ukiyo-e enhances aesthetic enjoyment and knowledge by evaluating curriculum design, teaching techniques, and student participation. Future studies could examine how Ukiyo-e's influence on modern Japanese art promotes international artistic collaboration. Ukiyo-e promotes global artistic communication, as seen by joint creative collaborations, international exhibitions, and cross-cultural initiatives.

This study lays the groundwork for future research on Ukiyo-e's impact on modern Japanese art and culture. These proposals indicate ways to investigate this dynamic interaction. Comparative cross-cultural investigation of Ukiyo-e's influence across cultures is a potential research direction. Researchers can discover Ukiyo-e's worldwide appeal and distinctive cultural resonance by studying how its aesthetics and subjects connect with various countries' artistic traditions. This could illuminate Ukiyo-e's broad influence on cross-cultural art. Understanding audience reactions to Ukiyo-e-influenced content can reveal its cultural and emotional impact. Surveys, focus groups, and in-depth interviews can be used to study how different demographic groups see Ukiyo-e-

inspired features in anime, manga, and video games. This technique may uncover the subtle ways Ukiyo-e enhances viewer and player experience.

Transmedia narratives are intriguing. Researchers can examine how Ukiyo-e's influence shapes narrative universes across many media channels, including anime, manga, video games, merchandise, fan art, and interactive experiences. Researchers can discover how Ukiyo-e's aesthetics and themes create a dynamic and immersive storytelling ecology by examining their interconnections. Ukiyo-e's influence on modern media's aesthetic approaches and inventions can help explain its revolutionary potential. Ukiyo-e-inspired animation, manga panel layouts, and video game visual design can be studied by researchers. This investigation may show how Ukiyo-e's legacy continues to push artistic boundaries. Ukiyo-e's influence on modern media's social criticism and present topics should be studied. Researchers can discover how historical art engages with current circumstances by examining Ukiyo-e-inspired statements about society, politics, or cultural identity. Ukiyo-e's ageless themes may be adapted to present issues in this study.

Collaborations between artists, producers, and scholars from other fields may reveal Ukiyo-e's multifaceted influence. Ukiyo-e aesthetics and themes could enrich varied creative pursuits in future studies. These relationships can show how Ukiyo-e promotes artistic innovation and collaboration. Ukiyo-e's influence on VR and AR platforms may be studied in the future due to quick technological breakthroughs. Researchers could study how immersive digital experiences incorporate Ukiyo-e-inspired features to make traditional art interactive and multimodal. This study may reveal how Ukiyo-e influences new art forms.

Ukiyo-e's impact on cultural heritage preservation and regeneration is another promising research topic. Researchers might examine how Ukiyo-e-inspired components in modern media preserve traditional art forms and revive historical aesthetics. Researchers can show how Ukiyo-

e's influence preserves cultural heritage for future generations by researching projects that bridge the past and present. Ukiyo-e's influence on gender and identity in modern media is intriguing. Research could examine how anime, manga, and video games adopt, challenge, or subvert Ukiyo-e-inspired gender roles and identities. This study may reveal how Ukiyo-e's visual language interacts with modern gender and identity. Given current media's global reach, future research could examine Ukiyo-e's impact on globalization. Researchers can discover how Ukiyo-e bridges cultures by studying how its elements are received, altered, and reinterpreted in different cultures.

Art education benefits from studying how Ukiyo-e's influence can be integrated into courses and pedagogy. Researchers could create and evaluate Ukiyo-e-inspired art history, cultural studies, and visual analysis modules. This method could give teachers new ways to get pupils interested in art's past and present. A longitudinal study of Ukiyo-e's influence across several decades in diverse artistic mediums could reveal how art evolves through time. Researchers can discover aesthetic trends by following Ukiyo-e-inspired elements from their introduction to their current forms. Ukiyo-e's role in Japan's diplomatic and cultural exchanges could be studied in the future. Researchers can study how Ukiyo-e acts as a cultural ambassador to promote worldwide understanding by examining foreign exhibitions, festivals, and collaborations. The ethical and legal concerns of Ukiyo-e-inspired media appropriation are becoming more important. Future studies could address cultural appropriation, intellectual property rights, and current producers' obligations when using historical creative forms.

This study's limitations suggest that more research is needed to fully understand Ukiyo-e's impact on modern Japanese art and culture. Future research can reveal how Ukiyo-e's legacy impacts contemporary art, promotes cultural interchange, and addresses critical social challenges. These paths of investigation can help researchers grasp Ukiyo-e's lasting and transformational

significance in the modern world. This study has shown how Ukiyo-e has shaped modern Japanese entertainment, but more research is needed to fully grasp this link. Researchers can unearth the complex layers of impact, meaning, and cultural relevance in the dynamic interplay between Ukiyo-e and modern artistic manifestations by resolving this study's shortcomings and exploring new possibilities.

## **Chapter 6: Conclusion**

Anime, manga, and video games have been heavily influenced by Edo-period art, notably Ukiyo-e. This study analyses Ukiyo-e's aesthetic and thematic aspects and shows its continuing impact on popular culture.

## 6.1. Key findings

This research shows how Japanese Edo period art, namely Ukiyo-e, influenced current creative representations like anime, manga, and video games. Aesthetics, subject matter, and cultural identity shape modern art.

## 6.1.1. Aesthetics

The distinctive visual aesthetic of Ukiyo-e, characterised by its prominent outlines, vivid hues, and rigorous focus on intricacy, has significantly influenced the artistic direction and character portrayal in contemporary anime and manga. According to Kim (2019), the aesthetics of Ukiyo-e have had a discernible impact on Japanese animation, as seen by the presence of expressive features and exaggerated facial emotions that have become characteristic of the medium. Incorporating Ukiyo-e's focus on definitive face characteristics into modern press plays a significant role in the unique and readily identifiable aesthetic of anime and manga, distinguishing them from other artistic mediums worldwide.

Moreover, integrating Ukiyo-e's creative components with state-of-the-art animation has allowed artists to create visually captivating and emotionally resonant characters and environments (Suan, 2021). The intricate relationship between conventional aesthetics and contemporary animation technology has resulted in unprecedented creative manifestation and narrative development within anime and manga. The impact of Ukiyo-e is notably apparent in portraying characters' emotions, as the adept adaptation of expressive facial features in Ukiyo-e figures

effectively communicates a diverse spectrum of sentiments, encompassing joy, enthusiasm, grief, and resentment.

Additionally, the artistic emphasis of Ukiyo-e on depicting fleeting instances of ordinary existence and the inherent allure of the natural world has established a profound connection with the subject matter and environments prevalent in modern anime and manga (Specificities, 2019). The enduring impact of Ukiyo-e's emphasis on visual aesthetics may be observed in contemporary narratives, which depict serene natural settings, vibrant urban environments, and personal connections between characters. Ukiyo-e's thematic elements enhance the storytelling of anime and manga, imbuing them with a heightened feeling of authenticity and complexity.

#### **6.1.2.** Themes and Narratives

The lasting impact of Ukiyo-e's themes and tales on contemporary manga and anime storytelling is evidence of the ageless nature of its aesthetic expression. The enduring appeal of Ukiyo-e prints lies in their depiction of beauty, mundane existence, natural scenery, and the realm of the supernatural (Specificities, 2019). This artistic tradition has effortlessly traversed over the ages and thrives in modern artistic creations. Incorporating these concepts into anime and manga has revitalised conventional subjects, enabling them to strike a chord with contemporary sensibilities (Reed, 2022). Using Ukiyo-e, a traditional Japanese art form, to portray classic tales and folklore has inspired the development of compelling narratives and the creation of fascinating characters in anime and manga. This practice has established an enduring link to Japan's abundant cultural legacy.

Additionally, cross-generational storytelling enhances contemporary media by imbuing it with a deep-rooted sense of heritage and engrosses global viewers. The inherent universality of

Ukiyo-e-inspired subjects surpasses cultural confines, eliciting emotional responses from viewers in many nations and geographic regions (Merviö, 2022). The exploration of beauty, the complexities and rewards of daily existence, the awe-inspiring nature of landscapes, and the captivating appeal of the supernatural elicit profound feelings and experiences that possess a universal resonance across individuals worldwide. Consequently, anime and manga function as cultural envoys, effectively exhibiting Japan's artistic tradition and cultivating a more profound comprehension and admiration for its cultural legacy internationally.

Moreover, by skilfully integrating the traditional themes of Ukiyo-e with modern storytelling techniques, producers of anime and manga have established a medium that effectively communicates with the shared human experience (Suvilay, 2019). Modern Japanese media has successfully captured an increasingly broad audience and established itself as an essential cultural export by including universal themes that transcend temporal and geographical boundaries. The impact of Ukiyo-e on contemporary narrative strengthens the long-lasting significance of artistic representation in safeguarding cultural identity while embracing the ever-evolving process of creative adaptation, enhancing Japan's cultural legacy and the worldwide domain of creative media.

## **6.1.3.** Cultural Identity

The continuing association of Ukiyo-e with the collective consciousness of the ordinary populace throughout the Edo era has had a lasting impact on contemporary Japanese culture. The topics honoured in this work, such as appreciating beauty in mundane aspects of life, align with the fundamental principles of Japanese culture and societal conventions. The significant impact is readily apparent via the thematic examination of historical contexts, the embodiment of the cultural tenets, and the depiction of distinct traditions and rituals in anime, manga, and video games

(Sheehan, 2020). These many types of media play a significant role in effectively communicating different facets of Japanese life and values, promoting a profound admiration and safeguarding of the country's cultural legacy.

Moreover, the profound cultural identity depicted in Japanese popular culture resonates with enthusiasts even beyond the geographical confines of Japan. The subjects portrayed in anime, manga, and video games possess a universal quality that surpasses linguistic and cultural boundaries, rendering them accessible and relevant to a wide-ranging worldwide audience (Lynch, 2022). Consequently, individuals with a keen interest in many regions throughout the globe actively adopt and commemorate this cultural identity, making significant contributions to the extensive recognition and worldwide allure of Japanese popular culture.

Finally, the depiction of Japanese tradition and cultural values through anime, manga, and video games cultivates a sense of familiarity and adoration among a global audience, so fostering an increasing awareness of the distinctive elements of Japan's cultural legacy (Natusch, 2019). The process of cross-cultural interaction facilitates the development of mutual understanding, encourages cultural diplomacy, and enhances Japan's soft power on the international platform. The effect of Ukiyo-e on contemporary Japanese media functions as a conduit that links historical and current periods, enabling the dissemination of cultural abundance, principles, and customs worldwide.

# 6.1.4. The proliferation of Visual Arts

The widespread appeal of Ukiyo-e during the Edo period was crucial in facilitating the democratisation of art consumption, hence enabling broader access to artistic works among the general population. Similarly, in contemporary times, anime, manga, and video games have

evolved as globally acknowledged mediums of creative representation and amusement, captivating a vast number of producers and consumers throughout the globe (Wagner, 2019). The enduring impact of Ukiyo-e in democratising the field of art is evident, as modern media platforms provide a wide range of avenues for everyone to participate in creative endeavour actively.

Moreover, the extensive accessibility of anime, manga, and video games has facilitated the development of a thriving and dynamic creative sector, driving Japan's cultural products to a worldwide viewership (Beattie, 2020). Various media platforms have facilitated the expansion of Japan's soft power, exerting influence on global attitudes and promoting cultural interaction. The widespread presence of visual arts throughout contemporary entertainment serves as a testament to the enduring influence of Ukiyo-e, underscoring the capacity of art to foster connections across diverse cultures and evoke a profound response from individuals across various societal backgrounds.

Overall, the study emphasises the lasting impact of Japanese Edo period art, namely Ukiyoe, on modern media manifestations, including anime, manga, and video games. The research significantly contributes to our knowledge of the historical bridge linking traditional Japanese art with contemporary creative industries. It enhances our comprehension of the cultural continuities that have influenced Japan's visual environment for millennia. The intricate relationship among aesthetics, thematic elements, and cultural identity serves to underscore the profound importance of Ukiyo-e in crafting the dynamic and internationally acclaimed realm of anime, manga, and video games.

## 6.2. Contributions to knowledge and understanding in the field

The present study has made noteworthy contributions to the academic discipline by examining the historical origins of Japanese popular culture and revealing the profound influence of Ukiyo-e on modern media (Hutchinson, 2019). This research has presented a thorough comprehension of the enduring impact of Ukiyo-e on contemporary popular culture, namely within the realms of anime, manga, and video games. Full knowledge has been achieved by examining the effect of aesthetic traditions from the Edo era. This observation presents a counterargument to the belief that the impacts of previous events are limited to a far and disjointed past. Instead, it highlights the ongoing significance and uninterrupted cultural interchange between historical and present periods.

Furthermore, the research has provided insights into the significance of cross-cultural exchange in influencing creative manifestations. The amalgamation of Ukiyo-e's artistic principles, subject matter, and narrative techniques with contemporary media exemplify the capacity of cultural legacy to adapt and flourish amidst swift societal transformations and technological progress (Suzuki and Stewart, 2022). This discovery holds significant relevance within a progressively globalised society, where the cross-border flow of ideas and cultural influences has become prevalent. Comprehending the interaction between traditional Japanese art and contemporary media enhances understanding of cultural dynamics and underscores the universal character of creative progress.

The study also emphasises recognising cultural history in modern artistic endeavours. By acknowledging the impact of Ukiyo-e and other historical visual forms on anime, manga, and video games, creators can demonstrate respect for their cultural heritage while embarking on novel avenues of artistic advancement. This well-rounded strategy facilitates the safeguarding and

commemoration of conventional art, guaranteeing its pertinence and uninterrupted presence in contemporary creative endeavours (Beattie, 2020). Furthermore, it cultivates a heightened feeling of cultural identification and pride among artists and spectators, fostering a better understanding of the intricate cultural tapestry that serves as the foundation for contemporary Japanese entertainment.

Moreover, the findings of this study provide significant insights for scholars and fans who specialise in the domain of Japanese art and popular culture. This study is a foundation for future scholarly investigations and inquiries into the historical interconnections among many manifestations of artistic creativity. The comprehension of the historical influence of Ukiyo-e on present-day media allows researchers to situate current artistic movements within their cultural and societal contexts and examine the broader implications of Japan's creative contributions worldwide.

In general, this study has made substantial contributions to our scholarly comprehension and awareness of the historical and cultural origins of Japanese popular culture, specifically about the impact of Ukiyo-e on contemporary anime, manga, and video games. By prioritising the lasting significance of conventional artistic expressions and their integration with modern technologies, this study challenges established cultural legacy assumptions, often perceived as unchanging and disconnected from the contemporary context. Consequently, this study cultivates a more profound recognition of artistic manifestation's dynamic and interrelated character, illuminating the universal and continuously growing elements of creativity that surpass temporal and geographical limitations.

#### **6.3.** Recommendations for further research

## **6.3.1.** Comparative Studies

There is significant potential for uncovering the cross-cultural effect of Japanese Edo period art through more investigation into the degree of Ukiyo-e's influence on other global art movements and visual storytelling traditions. Historians can identify common themes, creative approaches, and storytelling patterns by conducting comparative assessments of Ukiyo-e and skill from different areas and historical periods. Through the process of tracing these connections, it becomes possible to uncover unforeseen similarities and influences that exist between art forms that may initially appear unrelated (Beattie, 2020). This endeavour facilitates a more thorough comprehension of the worldwide interrelated nature of artistic expressions.

Furthermore, examining the distinctive influences exerted by Japanese Edo period art on these global movements will provide insights into the cultural importance of Ukiyo-e as a conduit connecting Japan and the international community (Frentiu and Ilis, 2022). The manifestation of aesthetic concepts and cross-cultural influences between Japan and other societies becomes evident, emphasising the significance of Ukiyo-e as a cultural emissary that surpasses geographical and chronological limitations. This study not only enhances our awareness of the global influence of Ukiyo-e but also encourages a broader acknowledgement of the universal nature of artistic expression, facilitating cultural exchange and fostering mutual understanding among varied communities. In essence, these comparative investigations provide evidence of the lasting influence of creative interaction and its impact on the development of global visual storytelling.

## **6.3.2.** Socio-cultural Impact

A comprehensive examination of the socio-cultural ramifications stemming from the widespread global appeal of anime, manga, and video games provides essential perspectives on the

complex interplay between modern media and Japan's rich artistic legacy (Yasuta and Pyshkin, 2020). Scholars can investigate the impact of transmitting Japanese popular culture through various channels on the perception of Japanese culture in foreign contexts. This research aims to illuminate the role of anime, manga, and video games as cultural ambassadors, exploring their influence on shaping worldwide perceptions of Japan and facilitating cultural interchange.

Additionally, the media has emerged as an influential platform for presenting Japan's creative traditions, cultural values, and societal standards, hence crucial in bolstering the nation's soft power on the international platform (Podsatiangool and Jimarkon, 2019). The examination of the influence of cultural diplomacy on Japan's international relations offers a nuanced comprehension of Japan's approach to engaging with other countries, facilitating mutual understanding, and establishing connections between disparate cultural groups. Conducting such a study is of utmost importance in elucidating the extensive influence of modern Japanese media in fostering cultural ties and a deepened recognition of Japan's abundant cultural legacy on a global scale.

## **6.3.3.** Technological Advancements

Examining the correlation between conventional art forms such as Ukiyo-e and contemporary digital art approaches provides vital perspectives on the progression of visual media in the digital era (Nguyen, 2021). Scholars can explore the impact of technical progress, namely using digital drawing tools and computer-generated images, on the transformation of production methods and aesthetic preferences within anime, manga, and video games. Digital technologies have facilitated the artistic process's optimisation, enabling artists to achieve expedited and more complicated visual narrative techniques. Furthermore, incorporating digital methodologies has

broadened the potential for dynamic and immersive environments, augmenting modern media's aesthetic allure and authenticity.

Simultaneously, examining how artists skilfully integrate classic Ukiyo-e components with current digital methodologies offers insight into the continuous amalgamation of historical and contemporary creative methods (Alt, 2020). By bridging the divide between historical and modern contexts, designers demonstrate a deep respect for the enduring tradition of Ukiyo-e while simultaneously producing novel and visually compelling experiences. The fusion observed in this context also underscores cultural heritage's capacity to adapt and evolve in the digital era, showcasing the coexistence of traditional artistic expressions with state-of-the-art technological advancements. In summary, examining the interaction between conventional and digital artistic practices sheds light on the profound impact of technological advances in defining the visual representation of contemporary anime, manga, and video games.

# **6.3.4.** Audience Reception

Audience research is of utmost importance in comprehending the lasting allure of Ukiyo-e-inspired components within modern media. By examining the factors that contribute to the captivation of audiences towards anime, manga, and video games that include Ukiyo-e themes, aesthetics, and storytelling approaches, scholars may acquire significant knowledge on the emotional and cultural significance of these components (Manji, 2020). These studies have the potential to provide insights into the common themes and archetypes that engage audiences globally, beyond cultural and language boundaries.

Moreover, gaining insight into the effects of Ukiyo-e on audience preferences may assist artists and businesses significantly, enabling them to create material that effectively captivates and

connects with their intended audiences (Pace, 2019). By analysing the aspects that attract individuals to Ukiyo-e-inspired components, content creators can enhance their narrative approaches and aesthetic decisions, producing material that establishes a profound connection with their target audience.

Furthermore, examining audience studies can provide light on how the lasting impact of Ukiyo-e art plays a significant role in the ongoing worldwide appeal and extensive consumption of Japanese popular culture. By examining the factors that attract fans from various backgrounds to Ukiyo-e-inspired media, scholars may gain a deeper understanding of the substantial influence that this cultural legacy exerts on the worldwide popularity of anime, manga, and video games (Little, 2021). Consequently, these studies significantly contribute to understanding the intricate interplay between conventional art forms and modern media. They reinforce the enduring and widespread allure of Ukiyo-e and its profound influence on the development of global creative manifestations.

# 6.3.5. Interdisciplinary Approaches

Promoting interdisciplinary study that explores the interrelationships between Ukiyo-e and other cultural domains, like literature, theatre, and music, facilitates a complete and nuanced comprehension of the period's impact on other creative spheres (Natusch, 2019). Scholars can elucidate the complex interplay of cultural exchange that influenced the development of Japan's aesthetic milieu through a comprehensive analysis of the pervasive presence of Ukiyo-e themes and motifs throughout many creative mediums and narrative traditions.

Additionally, examining the relationship between Ukiyo-e and literature can provide insights into the impact of visual art on written storytelling throughout the Edo period and subsequent eras. Ukiyo-e prints frequently portrayed scenarios from renowned literary

compositions, exemplifying the interdependent relationship between visual and textual artistic expressions (Beattie, 2020). Moreover, examining how the ideas of Ukiyo-e have permeated older Japanese theatrical forms, like Kabuki and Noh, can illuminate the interdependence of diverse performing arts and their shared cultural origins. Besides, the examination of the convergence of Ukiyo-e with music and dance reveals the symbiotic integration of several creative forms throughout the Edo period. Incorporating Ukiyo-e motifs into conventional music and dance presentations exemplifies visual art's significant cultural influence on performing arts.

Furthermore, exploring interdisciplinary studies can provide light on the broader ramifications of Ukiyo-e's impact on modern forms of media, specifically anime, manga, and video games (Little, 2021). Understanding how materials from many artistic areas have intersected to mould contemporary creative expressions helps cultivate a more profound recognition of Japan's abundant cultural legacy and worldwide impact.

In conclusion, the proposals above for further research present avenues for enhancing our comprehension of the profound impact of Ukiyo-e on contemporary anime, manga, and video games. These investigations can uncover the broader implications of Japanese Edo period art within the framework of global art movements, its influence on the formation of Japan's cultural identity, and the dynamic interplay between conventional and digital artistic methods. By employing multidisciplinary methodologies and conducting audience reception studies, scholars can get vital information into the enduring influence of Ukiyo-e and its role in the ongoing global popularity of current Japanese artistic manifestations.

#### **List of References**

- Agung, A., Jumneanbun, T., Paliyawan, P., & Thawonmas, R. (2021, October 1). *JUSTIN sings:*adding a musical-style narration generator to an APGWAP that collects ukiyo-e artworks

  descriptions. IEEE Xplore. https://doi.org/10.1109/GCCE53005.2021.9621816
- Alt, M., 2020. Pure invention: how Japan's pop culture conquered the world. Crown.
- Amber (2022). The Influence of Ukiyo-e on Impressionism ForThePeopleCollective.org.

  [online] Forthepeoplecollective. Available at: https://www.forthepeoplecollective.org/the-influence-of-ukiyo-e-on-impressionism/
- Aqrstudio (2022). How Japanese Ukiyo-e Influences New Design Trend. [online] AQR Studio.
- Art in context. (2022, January 2). "The Great Wave Off Kanagawa" Katsushika Hokusai An Analysis. Artincontext.org. https://artincontext.org/the-great-wave-off-kanagawa-katsushika-hokusai/
- Artsandculture (2023). *The Ukiyo-e Artists You Need To Know*. [online] Google Arts & Culture. Available at: <a href="https://artsandculture.google.com/story/the-ukiyo-e-artists-you-need-to-know/BOKC600k2oBRLA">https://artsandculture.google.com/story/the-ukiyo-e-artists-you-need-to-know/BOKC600k2oBRLA</a>.
- Asianart (2005). *The Ukiyo-e (Woodblock) Printing Process* | *Education* | *Asian Art Museum*. [online] Education. Available at: <a href="https://education.asianart.org/resources/the-ukiyo-e-woodblock-printing-process/">https://education.asianart.org/resources/the-ukiyo-e-woodblock-printing-process/</a>.
- Avendaño-Garro, K., 2021. Listening to Interstitial Identity in Contemporary Japanese Narrative.

  The University of Wisconsin-Madison.

- Bawiec, M. (2018). Murakami's Superflat: Constructing a Female Space in a Two-Dimensional Plane. *Conservancy.umn.edu*. https://conservancy.umn.edu/handle/11299/201575
- Beattie, J., 2020. The Editors and. Exporting Japanese Aesthetics: Evolution from Tradition to Cool Japan, p.249.
- Becke, C., 2022. Negotiating Gendered Identities Through Dress: Kimono at the Coming-of-age

  Day in Contemporary Japan (Doctoral dissertation, University of Sheffield).
- Bender, S., 2007. Popular Culture, Globalization and Japan.
- Biron, C. et al. (2019) "Colors of the 'Images of the Floating World'. Non-invasive Analysis of Japanese Ukiyo-e Woodblock Prints (18<sup>th</sup> and 19<sup>th</sup> centuries) and New Contributions to the Insight of Oriental Materials", *Microchemical Journal*, Vol. 152, [online], Accessed 30 June 2023 Available:
  - https://www.sciencedirect.com/science/article/abs/pii/S0026265X19318818
- Biron, C., Le Bourdon, G., Pérez-Arantegui, J., Servant, L., Chapoulie, R., & Daniel, F. (2018).

  Probing some organic ukiyo-e Japanese pigments and mixtures using non-invasive and mobile infrared spectroscopies. *Analytical and Bioanalytical Chemistry*, 410(27), 7043–7054. https://doi.org/10.1007/s00216-018-1305-2
- Biron, Carole, et al. (2020). Colours of the "images of the floating world". non-invasive analyses of Japanese ukiyo-e woodblock prints (18th and 19th centuries) and new contributions to the insight of oriental materials. *Microchemical Journal*, *152*, 104374. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.microc.2019.104374

- Bolitho, H., Burk, S., Campbell, R., Cannell, D., Crowley, C., Cummings, A., Fox, C., Fraleigh, M., Gerstle, C.A., Hare, T. and Hibbett, H., 2020. *A Kamigata Anthology: Literature from Japan's Metropolitan Centers, 1600–1750.* University of Hawaii Press.
- Breedlove, B. and Tucker R. (2018) "Revealing Details in Light and Shadows", *Emerging Infectious Diseases*, Vol. 24, No. 5, pp. 957-958.
- Britannica (2019). Ukiyo-e | Japanese art. In: *Encyclopædia Britannica*. [online] Available at: https://www.britannica.com/art/ukiyo-e.
- Brown, I. and Ognjen, A. (2020) "Making Japanese Ukiyo-e Art 3-D in Real-Time", *MDPI*, [online], Accessed 30 June 2023 Available: https://www.mdpi.com/2413-4155/2/2/32
- Cohen, M., 2019. A History of Popular Culture in Japan From the Seventeenth Century to the Present.
- Coman, S. (2023). *A brief history of the arts of Japan: the Edo period (article)*. [online] Khan Academy. Available at: <a href="https://www.khanacademy.org/humanities/art-asia/art-japan/japanese-art/a/a-brief-history-of-the-arts-of-japan-the-edo-period">https://www.khanacademy.org/humanities/art-asia/art-japan/japanese-art/a/a-brief-history-of-the-arts-of-japan-the-edo-period</a>.
- Cooper, C.N. (2020) The Prevalent Influence of Ukiyo-e on Nineteenth Century Artists. *The Influence of Japonisme in Claude Monet's Impression, Sunrise.* [Thesis]. The College of , 21-26.
- Davis, J. N. (2021). Picturing the Floating World: Ukiyo-e in Context. In *Google Books*.

  University of Hawaii Press.
- Duran, A., & Murgia, M. (2021). Global Milton and Visual Art. In *Google Books*. Rowman & Littlefield.

- Dwinger, J., Uhlenbeck, C. and Smit, J. (2023) *The Riddles of Ukiyo-e: Women and Men in Japanese Prints*. Brussels: Ludion.
- Ellis, J.W. (2019) "The Floating World of Ukiyo-e Prints: Images of a Japanese Counterculture", *Journal of Social and Political Sciences*, Vol. 2, No. 3, pp. 701-718.
- Fabbretti, E., Rethinking Ukiyo-e through the Eyes of Others. *Precarity in an Inter-connected Northeast Asia*, p.123.
- Frentiu, R. and Ilis, F., 2022. Knowledge as Play: Comics by Japanese Modern Literature. *Rev. Eur. Stud.*, *14*, p.1.
- Gargano, M., Longoni, M., Pesce, V., Palandri, M. C., Canepari, A., Ludwig, N., & Bruni, S. (2022). From Materials to Technique: A Complete Non-Invasive Investigation of a Group of Six Ukiyo-E Japanese Woodblock Prints of the Oriental Art Museum E. Chiossone (Genoa, Italy). *Sensors*, *22*(22), 8772. https://doi.org/10.3390/s22228772
- Gotthardt, A. (2019) "The Vengeful Female Ghosts in Japanese Ukiyo-e Prints will Haunt You", Artsy, [online], Accessed 01 July 2023 Available: https://www.artsy.net/article/artsy-editorial-vengeful-female-ghosts-japanese-ukiyo-e-prints-will-haunt
- Grovier, K., 2023. The Art of Colour: The History of Art in 39 Pigments. Thames & Hudson.
- Hammouri, A., 2022. The Influence of Japanese Ukiyo Art on Henri Toulouse-Lautrec's Poster Designs in the Context of European Art. *Dirasat: Human and Social Sciences*, 49(6), pp.38-49.
- Harper, H. and Borges, A., 2015. The Wish Fisher. Oxford University Press.
- Hashiguchi, G., Azechi, U., Hagiwara, H. and Hiratsuka, U. (2007). Beyond Ukiyo-e: Modern & Contemporary Japanese Prints The Floating World of Ukiyo-e | Exhibitions Library of

- *Congress*. [online] www.loc.gov. Available at: <a href="https://www.loc.gov/exhibits/ukiyo-e/beyond.html">https://www.loc.gov/exhibits/ukiyo-e/beyond.html</a>.
- Hayakawa, M. (2021) "Uses of Shunga and Ukiyo-e in the Tokugawa Period", in Leupp, G.P. and Tao, D. (eds) *The Tokugawa World*, London: Routledge.
- Herfs, L., 2020. Dreams of the Japanese Self in The Legend of Zelda: Breath of the Wild. *Replaying Japan*, 2(1), pp.33-47.
- Huang, X., The influence of Japanese Ukiyo-e on Western painting art in the 19th Century.
- Hutchinson, R., 2019. Japanese culture through videogames. Routledge.
- Ikegami, A. 2016. Cultural Appropriation or Homage? Ukiyo-e Influence in Western Video Games. Games and Culture, 18(4), 445-460.
- Jeanette (2019). *Ukiyo-e Art & it is Influence on Impressionism*. [online] iTravelWithArt. Available at: https://www.itravelwithart.com/ukiyo-e-art-impressionism/.
- Juagdan, A. (2023). *Ukiyo-e: Capturing the Essence of Japanese Art and Culture Asian Journal USA*. [online] Asianjournalusa. Available at: https://asianjournalusa.com/ukiyo-e-capturing-the-essence-of-japanese-art-and-culture/ [Accessed 2 Aug. 2023].
- Kacsuk, Z. (2018). Re-Examining the "What is Manga" Problematic: The Tension and Interrelationship between the "Style" Versus "Made in Japan" Positions. *Arts*, 7(3), 26. https://doi.org/10.3390/arts7030026
- Kane, T. (2023). *Drawing Parallels: Ukiyo-e, social media, and cultural expression*. [online]

  Bond Intimate: conne. Available at: https://www.bondintimate.com/post/drawingparallels-ukiyo-e-contemporary-media-channels-and-cultural-expression [Accessed 2
  Aug. 2023].

- Kern, A.L., 2021. Japan Supernatural: Ghosts, Goblins and Monsters, 1700 to Now ed. by Melanie Eastburn. *Monumenta Nipponica*, 76(1), pp.180-185.
- Keukelaar, M., 2022. The Impact of the Male Gaze: Femininity and Female Sexuality in Shunga Prints of the Edo Period.
- Khan, S. and van Noord, N. (2021) "Stylistic Multi-task Analysis of Ukiyo-e Woodblock Prints", BMVC, [online], Accessed 01 July 2023 Available: https://www.bmvc2021-virtualconference.com/assets/papers/1514.pdf
- Kim, L.B., 2019. Japanese Postmodernity and Flat Architecture. *Architectural research*, *21*(4), pp.99-109.
- Kimura, T., & Harris, J. (2020). Exporting Japanese Aesthetics: Evolution from Tradition to Cool Japan. In *Google Books*. Liverpool University Press.
- Kwon, N.A., 2022. 10. Millennial Vengeance. Theorizing Colonial Cinema: Reframing Production, Circulation, and Consumption of Film in Asia, p.242.
- Li, L., 2021. Reviving boro: The transcultural reconstruction of Japanese patchwork. Royal College of Art (United Kingdom).
- Liagkou, K., Pavlopoulos, J., & Machotka, E. (2022, June 1). *A Study of Distant Viewing of ukiyo-e prints*. ACLWeb; European Language Resources Association. https://aclanthology.org/2022.lrec-1.632/
- Little, R.L.D., 2021. Signs in International Media: Anime and the Image of the Journalist in Popular Culture (Doctoral dissertation, University of Colorado at Boulder).

- Lynch, J.L., 2022. Perfection and Performativity in Print: Visual Analyses of Gender and

  Sexuality Portrayals in Popular Japanese Graphic Arts since the 17th Century. Liverpool

  John Moores University (United Kingdom).
- Manji, R.C., 2020. Anime's atomic legacy: Takashi Murakami, Miyazaki, Anno, and the negotiation of Japanese war memory.
- Marsdevs (2023). *Trends 2022: The influence of Ukiyo-e on contemporary web design blog posted by MarsDevs team.* [online] www.marsdevs.com. Available at: https://www.marsdevs.com/technical/trends-2022-the-influence-of-ukiyo-e-on-contemporary-web-design [Accessed 2 Aug. 2023].
- Matsuoka, Y., 2019. The Influence of Ukiyo-e in Modern Anime and Manga. Japan Pop Culture Association Journal, 6(2), 145-162.
- Merviö, M.M., 2022. Art and Environment Seen Through the Lens of Politics in Japan.

  In *Handbook of Research on Interdisciplinary Studies on Healthcare, Culture, and the Environment* (pp. 263-278). IGI Global.
- Meurer, J. (2020). Women in Ukiyo-e. *Regis University Student Publications*. https://epublications.regis.edu/theses/950/
- Moilanen, T. (2021) "The Excellence of Yamazakura: Mountain Cherries and the Disappearing Tradition of Ukiyo-e Craft", *International Journal of Wood Culture*, *I*(1-3), pp. 126-146.
- Montanari, R., Murakami, N., Colomban, P., Alberghina, M.F., Pelosi, C. and Schiavone, S., 2020. European Ceramic technology in the Far East: Enamels and pigments in Japanese art from the 16th to the 20th century and their reverse influence on China. *Heritage Science*, 8(1), pp.1-17.

- Myanimelist (2023). *Slice of Life Anime*. [online] MyAnimeList.net. Available at: https://myanimelist.net/anime/genre/36/Slice of Life.
- Nakamura, K., & Fujimoto, R. 2021. Ukiyo-e Influence on Video Game Visual Design. Journal of Interactive Media, 25(4), 567-582.
- Natusch, B., 2019. Nation branding through film. *Japan Spotlight*.
- Nguyen, K.P., 2021. *TeamLab: Digital Playgrounds* (Doctoral dissertation, Texas Christian University).
- Ohki, S., 2020. The Private World of Surimono: Japanese Prints from the Virginia Shawan Drosten and Patrick Kenadjian Collection. Yale University Art Gallery.
- Okada, S., & Nakamura, Y. (Eds.). (2020). Ukiyo-e and the Evolution of Manga. Kyoto: Kyoto University Press.
- Ozgoren, S. (2018, October 8). *The Significance of Ukiyo-e as Social Media*. Medium. https://medium.com/@senemozgoren/the-significance-of-ukiyo-e-as-social-media-bb7151b2a3d1
- Pace, K., 2019. A Critical Study of Morality in Anime and its Effect on Young People (Doctoral dissertation, Doctoral dissertation, University of Malta).
- Pérez-Arantegui, J., Rupérez, D., Almazán, D., & Díez-de-Pinos, N. (2018). Colours and pigments in late ukiyo-e artworks: A preliminary non-invasive study of Japanese woodblock prints to interpret hyperspectral images using in-situ point-by-point diffuse reflectance spectroscopy. *Microchemical Journal*, 139, 94–109. https://doi.org/10.1016/j.microc.2018.02.015

- Podsatiangool, W. and Jimarkon, P., 2019. Japanese manga as intercultural media of the US and Japan: A case study of Akira Toriyama's Dragon Ball. *Unpublished Doctoral Dissertation, Thammasat University*.
- Prinz, J., 2021. Realism Relativized: A Cultural-Historical Approach to What Images Capture. *JOLMA*.
- Reed, R.O., 2022. Imaginary Landscapes (Doctoral dissertation, Illinois State University).
- Ro, C. (2019). *Did manga shape how the world sees Japan?* [online] www.bbc.com. Available at: <a href="https://www.bbc.com/culture/article/20190610-did-manga-shape-how-the-world-sees-japan">https://www.bbc.com/culture/article/20190610-did-manga-shape-how-the-world-sees-japan</a>.
- Rusiňáková, M., 2019. Perception of Tattoos in Contemporary Japanese Society.
- Saaler, S., 2020. Men in Metal: A Topography of Public Bronze Statuary in Modern Japan. Brill.
- Sakura, O. (2021). Robot and ukiyo-e: implications to cultural varieties in human–robot relationships. *AI & SOCIETY*. *37*(4), pp.1563-1573. https://doi.org/10.1007/s00146-021-01243-8
- Scrolavezza, P., Scatasta, G. and Specchio, A. eds., 2023. *NipPop: 10 anni di cultura pop giapponese in Italia*. Mimesis.
- Sheehan, K.N., 2020. Chapter One Modernizing And Marketing Monsters In Japan:

  Shapeshifting Yp. \$, And The Reflection Of Culture. Exploring the Macabre, Malevolent, and Mysterious: Multidisciplinary Perspectives, p.2.
- Shi, Y. and Zhou, H., 2023. The Influence of Ukiyo-e on Modern Illustration. *Highlights in Art and Design*, *3*(1), pp.12-14.

- Shi, Y., & Zhou, H. (2023) The Influence of Ukiyo-e on Modern Illustration. *Highlights in Art* and Design, 3(1), pp. 12–14. https://doi.org/10.54097/hiaad.v3i1.9159
- Smith, J. T., & Tanaka, M. (Eds.), 2020. Ukiyo-e and its Impact on Contemporary Visual Arts.

  Tokyo: University of Tokyo Press.
- Specificities, S.C., 2019. Manga, Anime, Adaptation: Economic Strategies, Aesthetic Specificities, Social Issues. *Comics and Pop Culture: Adaptation from Panel to Frame*, p.70.
- Steele, C. (2022). *10 Anime That Celebrate the Beauty of Nature*. [online] CBR. Available at: <a href="https://www.cbr.com/best-anime-about-nature/">https://www.cbr.com/best-anime-about-nature/</a>
- Stirek, L., 2022. Manga Afterlives of Ogura hyakunin isshu: The Case of Chihayafuru (Doctoral dissertation, The Ohio State University).
- Strusiewicz, C. (2017). *Why Utagawa Kuniyoshi was the Most Thrilling Ukiyo-e Master*. [online] Japan Objects. Available at: https://japanobjects.com/features/utagawa-kuniyoshi.
- Suan, S., (2021). Colorful Execution: Conventionality and Transnationality in Kimetsu no Yaiba. *Transcommunication*, 8(2), pp.179-191.
- Sugawara, M. (2022) Merits and Demerits of the Study of Ukiyo-e: Issues Stemming from how Ukiyo-e is Regarded in Modern Japan. *Urban Scope*, 13, 1-14.
- Suvilay, B., 2019. Art catalogue review—The Citi Exhibition: Manga???-Nicole Coolidge Rousmaniere, Ryoko MATSUBA (Eds). *Mutual Images Journal*, (6), pp.183-185.
- Suzuki, H. (2017). Bridging the Past and the Present: Ukiyo-e in Modern Manga. Manga Studies, 5(1), 32-47.

- Suzuki, M. (2017). The Role of Ukiyo-e in the Development of Modern Manga. *Journal of Asian Art Studies*, 22(1), 78-95.
- Suzuki, S.C. and Stewart, R., (2022). Manga: a critical guide. Bloomsbury Publishing.
- Takase, A.M., 2000. What Drew the Impressionists and Post-impressionists to the Japanese Art of *Ukiyo-e*. California State University, Dominguez Hills.
- Taniguchi, A. (2019). Anime and Manga Artists' Perspectives on Ukiyo-e Influence. Visual Arts Quarterly, 15(3), 189-202.
- Tankha, B., 2021. Kita Ikki and the making of modern Japan: a vision of empire. Brill.
- The Art Story (2015). *Superflat Movement Overview*. [online] The Art Story. Available at: <a href="https://www.theartstory.org/movement/superflat/">https://www.theartstory.org/movement/superflat/</a>.
- van der Eng, T., 2023. A new perspective: Understanding the role of architecture in the Ukiyo-e printing tradition through Hiroshige Utagawa.
- Wade, L., How Did We Get Here?.
- Wagner, B.B., (2019). Sex, Scandal, and Allure: The Erotic Art of Shun-ga from Edo to Early Modern Japan.
- Watanabe, T. (2018). The Aesthetic Continuity: Ukiyo-e Elements in Contemporary Anime.

  Animation Studies, 9(2), 201-218.
- Werning, S., (2014). Manga, anime and video games: Between adaptation, transmedia extension and reverse remediation. *MediaScape*, *UCLA's Journal of cinema and media studies*.
- Wirtz, B. (2020). *Game Design with Impact: The Psychology of Game Immersion*. [online] The Ultimate Resource for Video Game Design. Available at:

  <a href="https://www.gamedesigning.org/learn/game-immersion/">https://www.gamedesigning.org/learn/game-immersion/</a>.

- Wise, E. (2019). Japanese Influence on Western Impressionists: The Reciprocal Exchange of Artistic Techniques. *A with Honors Projects*. https://spark.parkland.edu/ah/262/
- Xiao, R., 2021. *Yokai Ukiyo-e: Exploring Aesthetics of Monsters in Japanese Ukiyo-e* (Doctoral dissertation, Sotheby's Institute of Art-New York).
- Yamamoto, S. (2018). From Woodblock Prints to Digital Media: Ukiyo-e's Journey in Modern Visual Culture. *International Journal of Art and Design*, 12(3), 235-248.
- Yasuta, T. and Pyshkin, E., (2020). Manga design and role language in the context of cross-cultural communication of language learners. In *INTED2020 Proceedings* (pp. 1-9). IATED.
- Yi, Y. (2023). An Analysis of the Status of Japanese Zen Art Aesthetics in Ukiyo-e from Katsushika Hokusai to Van Gogh. *American Journal of Art and Design*. 8(1), pp.12-17. https://doi.org/10.11648/j.ajad.20230801.12.